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Overview 
 

 

Executive Summary 
 

The School Boarding Facilities Legislation Amendment and Repeal Bill 2016 passed both houses of Parliament on 

16 November 2016 and was proclaimed on 1 July 2017.  This bill abolished the Country High School 

Hostels Authority and enabled the functions of the Authority to be undertaken by the Department of 

Education. 

 

For 2016 support services to residential colleges were expanded to include the Department of Education’s, 

School Psychology Service. Each college was allocated school psychologist time in accordance with the 

number and complexity of the student cohort. This service has been of significant benefit to the care 

provided to residential college students.  

 

For 2017, the Authority’s nine residential colleges accommodated 593 secondary students from 21 schools: 

16 public, four Catholic and one Independent School.  For 2017, with the addition of St Joseph’s School 

Northam, the number of partner schools increased to 21. 

 

Overall demand for student boarding decreased by 3.3% in 2017 relative to 2016.  Two of the nine 

residential colleges had more placements than in 2016; one college is at capacity for female students and 

has a waiting list.  Accommodation capacity increased from 905 beds in 2016 to 949 beds in 2017.  The 

average occupancy for all colleges for 2017 is 62%.   

 
The State Government has continued to invest in boarding service infrastructure as part of its commitment 

to providing educational opportunities for geographically isolated secondary school students.  The 

investment has ensured the Authority provides high-quality accommodation and facilities to 

geographically isolated secondary school students, enabling them to have access to high-quality secondary 

schools.  

 

In October 2014, the State Government provided funding through the Royalties for Regions program for 

additions at Broome Residential College.  The Broome Residential College upgrade was completed in 

November 2016, increasing capacity from 72 to 116 places. These places, specifically designed for junior 

secondary students, became available for the beginning of the 2017 school year.   Full capacity for female 

students was achieved, with a small number of places for male students available.   

 

In March 2017, the State Government confirmed the $6.4 million building upgrade at City Beach 

Residential College.  This build will provide recreational facilities, kitchen, dining room and administrative 

facilities, tutoring and music practice room purpose-built for a residential college setting. Construction will 

begin in 2018 ready for student use in 2019. 
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Appointment of the Reporting Officer  
 

Under Section 68(1) of the Finance Management Act 2006 (FMA) it is necessary to appoint a Reporting 

Officer, to perform duties in relation to the final reports for the abolition of the Country High School 

Hostels Authority.  

 

The Country High School Hostels Authority sought approval from the Treasurer to appoint a reporting 

officer who is responsible for the preparation of the final report for the closure of Country High School 

Hostels Authority. The report will be for the period 1 July 2016 to 30 June 2017 inclusive and include a set 

of financial statements and notes (including 2016 comparatives), an abridged report on operations and key 

performance indicators. 

 

The final report is to be submitted to the Minister for Education and Training within 90 days of the closure 

date of the Country High School Hostels Authority, to be tabled in Parliament 14 days after that. 

 

Operational Structure 

 

 

MMIINNIISSTTEERR  FFOORR  EEDDUUCCAATTIIOONN  AANNDD  TTRRAAIINNIINNGG  

 

CCOOUUNNTTRRYY  HHIIGGHH  SSCCHHOOOOLL  HHOOSSTTEELLSS  AAUUTTHHOORRIITTYY  

 

CCHHIIEEFF  EEXXEECCUUTTIIVVEE  OOFFFFIICCEERR  

 

MMAANNAAGGEERR  RREESSIIDDEENNTTIIAALL  CCOOLLLLEEGGEESS  

  

DDIIRREECCTTOORRAATTEE  &&  CCOORRPPOORRAATTEE  SSEERRVVIICCEESS  
  

RREESSIIDDEENNTTIIAALL  CCOOLLLLEEGGEE  BBOOAARRDDSS  OOFF  MMAANNAAGGEEMMEENNTT  

  

CCOOLLLLEEGGEE  MMAANNAAGGEERRSS  

SSEENNIIOORR  SSUUPPEERRVVIISSOORRSS  

SSUUPPEERRVVIISSOORRSS  

AADDMMIINNIISSTTRRAATTIIOONN  &&  FFIINNAANNCCEE  OOFFFFIICCEERRSS  

AANNCCIILLLLAARRYY  SSTTAAFFFF  
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Responsible Minister 
  

The Minister for Education and Training is the responsible Minister. 

 

The Hon Sue Ellery MLC was appointed as the responsible Minister on 17 March 2017.  

 

Legislation 
 

The legislative basis for the Authority’s operations and the legislation for which the Authority is 

responsible was the Country High School Hostels Authority Act 1960.  In the performance of its functions, the 

Authority complies with all relevant State and Commonwealth legislation. 

 

On 1 July 2017 The School Boarding Facilities Legislation Amendment and Repeal Bill 2016 was proclaimed, 

abolishing the Country High School Hostels Authority and transferring all operations, assets and liabilities 

of the Authority to the Department of Education.  

 

Accountability 

 
The Authority consists of a Chairperson and six other members.  They are accountable for the agency’s 

operations and administer its business planning and operations.  Authority members are appointed on the 

basis of their association with the conduct of residential colleges, their suitability to represent parents of 

children accommodated in residential colleges or their general capacity for community service.  At all 

times one member is required to be an officer of the Public Service.   

 

The Governor of Western Australia appoints the Chairperson and members on the nomination of the 

Minister for Education for a three-year term.  Members are eligible for reappointment. 

 

Members of the Authority 
 

Mr Richard Simonaitis, Chief Executive Officer with Australian Export Grains Innovation Centre and a 

former Chairperson of the Albany Residential College Board of Management.   

Mr Simonaitis has presided as Acting Chairperson since 8 April 2013.  

 

Ms  Jeanette De Landgrafft, former President of the Isolated Children’s Parents’ Association (WA). 

 

Mr Graham Wilks, an executive manager with the Department of Fire and Emergency Services and a 

former Chairperson of the Geraldton Residential College Board of Management.   

 

Mr Kim Guelfi, Principal of Applecross Primary School, Department of Education.  An experienced 

educator, Mr Guelfi has served public education in executive administrative positions and as a principal 

and teacher in district high schools and primary schools. 

 

An appointment to the Authority carries significant responsibilities and obligations.  Authority members 

also assume responsibility for particular colleges, visit them and support special college events.  Authority 

members have the power to regulate their own proceedings and as such have established a set of 

Guidelines and a Code of Conduct to enable members to carry out their responsibilities and obligations 

effectively and in accordance with State Government and public expectations.  They are reimbursed for 

costs incurred in conducting Authority business.  Members who are not public sector employees are paid a 

sitting fee.   

 

During the reporting period, five Authority meetings were held.   
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Chief Executive Officer 

 
Ms Sharyn O'Neill, Director General, Department of Education, has been Chief Executive Officer of the 

Authority since 13 December 2011.  Ms O’Neill was reappointed to this position for a five-year term 

commencing on 12 June 2012.   

 

 

Residential College Boards of Management 
 

Each residential college has a Board of Management appointed by the Authority to carry out the general 

management of the college.  Each Residential College Board of Management operates under a constitution 

that sets out the powers and functions delegated to it by the Authority.  Residential College Boards of 

Management are made up of parents, partner school principals and volunteers from the local community.  

Board members generally meet twice during each school term to review and direct college operations to 

ensure that they meet parents’ expectations and the standards set by the Authority and the State 

Government.   

 

Residential College Boards of Management ensure that residential college policies are developed with 

broad and relevant input and that college operations are open to public scrutiny.  They help ensure that 

college operations and services meet appropriate standards and are cost-effective.  

 

All newly appointed members of Residential College Boards of Management are provided with a 

comprehensive induction file on appointment.  

 

Country High School Hostels Authority Directorate 
 

The Authority operates with a central directorate.  The Manager Residential Colleges has line management 

responsibility for the performance of college managers.  Central Office staff provide an administrative and 

executive service for the Authority and support its operations by: 

 

 communicating standards, policy, general operational procedures, advice and relevant information;  

 establishing appropriate financial accountability;  

 developing personnel management policies and procedures; 

 facilitating the maintenance of colleges as safe, functional and attractive facilities; 

 receiving, considering and responding to correspondence received from colleges and other sources;  

 providing accountability to State Government;  

 maintaining operations within legislation and the State Government's guidelines; and 

 contributing to the improvement of college operations, including parent and student services and staff 

development. 

 

Central Office Staff as at 30 June 2017 

Manager Residential Colleges: Ms Debra Hardie 

Chief Finance Officer: Mr Dudley Smith 

Project Officer: Ms Chanelle Allia 

Personnel & Payroll Officer: Mr Glenn Lukehurst 

Administrative Assistant: Ms Kylie Connell 
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Corporate Services 

 

The Authority’s central office is collocated with the Department of Education.  Under rent and service 

support arrangements, it is supported with Department telecommunications, information technology, 

reception, mail, office security and cleaning services.  The Department’s Ministerial and Executive Services 

Branch coordinates communication with the office of the Minister for Education and Training in 

accordance with a Communications Agreement.  A common Record-Keeping Plan serves both agencies 

and the Authority utilises the Department’s HPE Records Manager record keeping system.  Under the 

Freedom of Information Regulations 1993, the Department also has responsibility for the management of 

Freedom of Information requests to the Authority.  The Authority also benefits from its collocation with the 

Department in having access to support from a range of specialist service personnel.   

 

Under a service agreement the Authority has engaged the Department’s Standards and Integrity 

Directorate to assist with the delivery of multi-avenue, child-friendly complaints processes.  Its 

professional staff investigate and report on children’s safety concerns and manage misconduct and 

disciplinary processes for the Authority.   

 

As a small agency, the Authority also benefits from the support of the Department of Commerce, which 

provides industrial relations advice and support and undertakes enterprise bargaining on the Authority’s 

behalf.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Country High School Hostels Authority 

Level 2, 151 Royal Street 

EAST PERTH   WA   6004 

 

Telephone: (08) 9264 5434 

Facsimile:   (08) 9264 5433 

Email:    chsha@education.wa.edu.au 

www.education.wa.edu.au/boarding 

 

 

mailto:chsha@education.wa.edu.au
http://www.education.wa.edu.au/boarding
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Report on Operations 
 

 

Mission 
 

The Authority is committed to the achievement of high standards and being recognised throughout 

Australia as being at the forefront in the care and development of students boarding away from home.  

Authority, residential college Board members and staff believe in the potential of all students in residence 

and are actively working to support them in their personal development.  

 

 

Values 
 

Mutual Respect 

All students and staff feel respected and supported. 

 

Self-fulfilment and Success 

All students and staff feel positive about themselves and their future prospects. 

 

High Standards 

All students and staff set and achieve high standards. 

 

Fairness 

All students and staff think and act fairly in the pursuit of self-fulfilment and high standards. 

 

Cooperation 

Students, staff and parents work together in achieving their objectives. 

 

 

 

Performance Management Framework 
 

Broad State Government goals are supported at agency level by specific outcomes.  Agencies deliver 

services to achieve these outcomes. 

 

 

State Government Goal – Stronger Focus on the Regions 
 

‘Greater focus on service delivery, infrastructure investment and economic development to improve the overall quality 

of life in remote and regional areas.’  

 

 

Desired Agency Outcome 
 

The desired outcome for the Authority is high-quality accommodation, care and services for isolated 

students who have to board away from home to attend school.   
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The Authority’s Service 
 

The Authority’s service consists of the establishment, operation and maintenance of residential colleges 

that provide high-quality accommodation, care and services for isolated students.   

 

In 2016-17, the Authority provided a boarding service in close proximity to senior high schools in eight 

regional centres.   

 

The Authority has a metropolitan residential college located in City Beach.  This college services the 

accommodation requirements of gifted and talented (GAT) country students who have gained entry into 

GAT programs, including those offered at Perth Modern School, John Curtin College of the Arts, Shenton 

College and Applecross, Churchlands and Melville Senior High Schools. 

 

In addition to providing regional students with access to educational services that are comparable with 

those available to metropolitan students, the Authority supports the State Government’s goal through its: 

 involvement of regional communities in the management of its residential colleges to ensure that they 

meet students’ needs and community expectations;  

 capital investment in boarding facility infrastructure in regional centres and on behalf of 

geographically isolated children;  

 contribution to the development and education of regional youth and their future capacity as adults to 

be effective and valuable members of rural and regional communities; and  

 use of regional suppliers and services and support for the State Government’s Buy Local policy that is 

aimed at maximising opportunities for small, local and regional businesses in 

Western Australia through State Government buying.   

 

Enrolment History 

 
 Student Enrolment (as at end of February) 

College 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 

Albany 128 128 118 127 95 97 80 81 86 94 82 

Broome1 30 48 78 60 52 77 51 72 73 72 102 

City Beach2 17 45 53 63 66 69 60 57 54 56 52 

Esperance 98 98 90 89 78 86 75 73 82 79 95 

Geraldton 134 118 113 109 100 89 89 62 60 80 68 

Katanning3 24 37 18 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Merredin 35 30 43 34 24 44 47 48 59 60 41 

Moora 39 36 30 31 29 40 30 28 34 35 32 

Narrogin 220 205 184 163 156 142 133 124 125 113 102 

Northam 48 33 36 39 37 21 19 18 21 24 19 

Totals 773 778 763 715 637 665 584 563 594 613 593 

 1. Broome Residential College opened on 24 July 2007 with 30 students.   

2. City Beach Residential College commenced operations from the beginning of the 2007 school year. 

3. Katanning Residential College has not operated as a boarding facility since December 2009. 
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Provisions 
 

The Authority’s boarding service performs an important role in supporting the personal wellbeing and 

development of the students in residence.  The service exists to provide geographically isolated students 

access to secondary schools that offer their year of study, and where they can pursue their education and 

social development in the company of other students of the same age.  The Authority offered enough 

boarding places in 2016-17 to provide access to mainstream secondary schooling and gifted and talented 

education for geographically isolated students.   

 

The needs of isolated families are well represented by the Isolated Children’s Parents’ Association.  In 

accordance with this Association’s request, the boarding allowances provided by the Federal and State 

Governments are not restricted to the nearest boarding facility, but allow a family to seek admission for 

their child at any boarding facility in the State.   

 

The Authority has allowed families in receipt of a boarding allowance to seek admission for their children 

at any of its residential colleges.  However it has made no guarantee that a student can gain entry to his or 

her nearest residential college.  Families have been required to apply early to secure a place at the 

residential college of their choice.   

 

Asset planning is undertaken on the basis of ensuring a return on the capital investment involved and 

student location relative to existing residential colleges and their service capacity. 
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Key Performance Indicators  

 
Agency Level Government Desired Outcome:  Quality accommodation, care and services for isolated 

students who have to board away from home to attend school. 

 

Agency’s Service consists of the Establishment, Operation and Maintenance of Residential Colleges. 

 

Effectiveness Indicator – Average Occupancy Rate (Audited) 
 

Average occupancy across all residential colleges on the February 2017 census date was 62% relative to a 

68% target.  The total enrolment of 593 in 2017 was down (3.3%) on the previous year due mainly to the 

reduction in enrolments in all colleges except Broome and Esperance.  The addition of new beds at Broome 

Residential College increased the capacity to 949, which was an increase of 3.9% on the previous year.  The 

increased capacity at Broome also had the effect of reducing the overall occupancy rate. 

 

 

Enrolment Data as at 28 February 2017 

Residential 2017 2017 2017 2016 2015 2014 

College Capacity Enrolment Occupancy Occupancy Occupancy Occupancy 

Albany 144 82 57% 65% 60% 56% 

Broome 116 102 88% 100% 100% 100% 

City Beach  66 52 79% 85% 79% 84% 

Esperance 114 95 83% 69% 91% 81% 

Geraldton 126 68 54% 63% 48% 65% 

Merredin 72 41 57% 83% 100% 100% 

Moora 50 32 64% 70% 68% 56% 

Narrogin 218 102 47% 52% 57% 57% 

Northam 43 19 44% 56% 49% 42% 

Totals 949 593 62% 68% 68% 68% 

 
 

1. Occupancy 

 

The average occupancy has dropped to 62% this year, which is a 6% reduction. 

 

All colleges, except Esperance, had a reduction to their occupancy rate. 
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Effectiveness Indicator – Service Rating (Audited) 
 

The Authority first initiated a Parent Satisfaction Survey in 1994 to gain an appreciation of how well its 

boarding service met parents’ expectations.  Since then, it has continued to survey parents on a biennial 

basis.  During Term 2, 2016 the Authority conducted its twelfth survey.  Parents of students’ at all nine 

residential colleges were surveyed regarding the quality of the services and care provided. The data was 

aggregated to provide an overall rating.  Surveys were sent to 485 families’, of these, 235 families (48.5%) 

completed the survey and provided ratings.  The standard error rate was less than ±5%. 

 

To ensure that parents can provide formal input into residential college operations, the Authority 

implements a Parent Satisfaction Survey every two years, which invites parents to rate and provide 

commentary or suggestions on various aspects of college operations.  All suggestions are presented to the 

respective College Boards of Management and to residential college managers to assist them in improving 

and delivering a boarding service that is highly valued by parents.  

 

Parent satisfaction is one measure of the quality of the Authority’s service.  The target for 2016 was to 

achieve 92% of respondents rating residential college care and services as good or better.  Of those who 

responded, 92% rated residential college services and care as of good, high or very high-quality and 97.9% 

rated residential college services and care as adequate or better.  Results indicate that the Authority is 95% 

certain that between 85% and 95% of all parents rated residential college care and services as of good, high 

or very high-quality. 

 

The overall rating for the quality of service and care provided for 2016 is compared to the 2014 survey in 

the following graph: 

 

Rating Scale 

1 – Unacceptable quality     2 - Inadequate 3 - Adequate 

4 – Good quality     5 - High-quality 6 – Very high-quality 

 

Note:  Where respondents provided a rating between the whole number rating indicators the  

‘in between’ ratings have been rounded up in both 2014 and in 2016.   
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Efficiency Indicator - Average Cost per Student 
 

The average cost per student for each of the past four years is illustrated in the following table: 

 

 

 2016-17 

Actual 

2016-17 

Budget 

2015-16 

Actual 

2014-15 

Actual 

2013-14 

Actual 

 $000’s $000’s $000’s $000’s $000’s 

Expenditure     16,769     15,440  15,009  14,965  14,629 

Enrolment          577          620  571  549  562 

Cost per Student   $29,062      $24,903  $26,282  $27,258  $26,030 

 

 

The increase in the average cost per student in 2016-17 compared to the previous year is due to an 8.6% 

increase in expenditure and a 3.3% increase in enrolments.  

 

The actual expenditure for 2016-17 was 8.6% above that projected in the budget estimates. In addition 

enrolments were 6.9% below-budget prediction, which resulted in a greater cost per student than 

budgeted. 

 

 

Certification of Key Performance Indicators 
 

I hereby certify that the key performance indicators are based on proper records and are relevant and 

appropriate for assisting users to assess the Country High School Hostels Authority's performance, and 

fairly represent the performance of the Country High School Hostels Authority for the financial year ended 

30 June 2017.  

 

 
 

Dudley Smith 

REPORTING OFFICER  

 

29 August 2017 
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Enrolment and Boarding Fee Revenue Target 
 

Boarding fee revenue makes up a significant component of the total revenue needed to provide a 

residential college service.   

 

 2015-16 2016-17 

Target Enrolment 623 620 

Actual Enrolment 571 577 

 

The actual enrolment was 6.9% less than the target figure, which was based upon actual enrolment data 

collected over the preceding year.  The actual enrolment figure shown above is not the enrolment as at the 

February 2017 census date.  Rather, it is derived by recording and averaging the number of students on the 

last day of each month that students are in residence throughout the financial year.   

 

 

Residential College Operating Costs 

 
The following table illustrates the per student operating cost for each of the nine residential colleges for the 

2016-17 financial year and the preceding year.  The costing includes depreciation costs and a pro-rata head 

office cost component.  The inclusion of depreciation affects the cost-per-student ranking.   

 

The cost per student informs capital investment and the service planning advice provided by the Authority 

to the responsible Minister.   

 

Cost-per-student data, exclusive of the depreciation and head office cost components, are analysed and 

updated every month and provided to all residential colleges to enable them to monitor their performance 

on this measure relative to other residential colleges.  
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Recurrent and Capital Cash Expenditure 2016-17 
 

The following is a summary of recurrent and capital cash expenditure that totalled $23,504,000 in 2016-17.  

The revenue expended includes the recurrent and capital funds provided to the Authority by the State 

Government and the boarding fees collected by residential colleges.  

 

 
 

Cost of Service 

 
The net cost of service was greater than the budget figure due to above budget costs related to cost of 

employee benefits, accommodation and other expenses.  Operating revenue was below-budget due to 

enrolments being below-budget. 

 

 

  2016-17 

 Actual 

 $’000 

 2016-17 

 Budget 

 $’000 

Total Cost of Service   16,769  15,440 

Less Operating Revenue  9,076  10,065 

 

Net Cost of Service 

 

 7,693 

 

 5,375 
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Shared Responsibility  

 

 

Quality and Reputation 
 

The Authority’s boarding service performs an important role in supporting the personal wellbeing and 

development of the students in residence. The service exists to provide geographically isolated students 

access to secondary schools that offer their year of study, and where they can pursue their education and 

social development in the company of other students of the same age.  

 

Research has shown that school performance and reputation are the most important factors affecting 

secondary education choices by geographically isolated families. These choices impact significantly on 

enrolments at their partner residential college.  School enrolments are also affected by the quality and 

reputation of their partner residential college. 

 

Geographically isolated families are eligible for State and Commonwealth boarding allowances and can 

choose any secondary school in the State supported by a boarding service.  For regional boarding services 

to remain viable, there is a need to ensure that the education and boarding services on offer in regional 

centres are on par with metropolitan education and boarding services.    

 

Year 7 
 

With the 2015 introduction of Year 7 students into secondary schooling, the Authority has ensured there is 

adequate accommodation at all residential colleges.  A sixth cohort of younger students in the residential 

colleges has resulted in some organisational and procedural changes. 

 

Partnerships 
 

The Authority’s residential colleges work in partnership with a number of public secondary schools in 

providing access to secondary education for geographically isolated children.  Four of the nine residential 

colleges also work in partnership with Catholic and independent schools.  Partner school principals are 

members of the various residential college boards of management.  School and residential college staff 

liaise closely with partner school staff in caring for students and supporting them with their education and 

personal development.  Parents are also represented on Residential College Boards of Management and 

residential college staff are in close and regular contact with parents regarding their children. As 

residential colleges are located in regional centres, many of the students return home on weekends during 

the school term. 

 

Aboriginal Students 
 

Aboriginal students are provided for at the Authority residential colleges, with the greatest demand being 

from Aboriginal students residing in the Kimberley region.  Recent upgrades to Broome Residential 

College has increased capacity from 72 to 116 beds, which will assist in meeting this demand.  
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Asset Planning  
 

Royalties for Regions funding for regional based residential colleges has provided for further additions to 

the Merredin Residential College and improvements to the Esperance and Narrogin Residential Colleges.  

This ensures that students boarding at these residential colleges live in modern, high-standard boarding 

facilities.   

 

Additions to increase the boarding capacity of Merredin Residential College from 48 to 72 in readiness for 

the Year 7s in 2015 were completed in August 2015.   

 

The Stage Two upgrade to Esperance Residential College was completed in January 2016.  This upgrade 

cost $3.035 million and replaced an old dormitory with a 24-individual-bedroom accommodation block.   

 

The State Government-approved funding for the additions at Broome Residential College were completed 

in November 2016.  The additions increased the capacity at the college from 72 to 116, and added a 

recreation facility and new staff accommodation units.   
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Significant Issues Impacting the Agency 
 

 

Reduction of Enrolments 
 

The total residential college enrolment in 2017 reduced by 3.3% at all colleges except Broome and 

Esperance.   

 

Historically, the enrolment of students in Years 11 and 12 is higher than the enrolment in Years 8, 9 and 10.  

This is because students in these years have bus access to district high schools, which provide for students 

from Kindergarten to Year 10.   

 

Residential College Upgrades  

 

The State Government approved the use of part of the Royalties for Regions funding provided to the 

Authority for regional residential colleges to undertake major upgrades.   

 

The $3.9 million additions to Merredin Residential College, which consisted of an additional 12 individual 

bedrooms for male students and 12 individual bedrooms for female students, increasing capacity from 48 

to 72, were completed in August 2015.  

 

The Esperance Residential College Stage Two upgrade of bedrooms for male students was completed in 

January 2016.  These works had no impact on overall capacity but provided modern single bedrooms more 

aligned with parental expectations.    

  

The State Government approved $11.5 million funding for additions to increase boarding capacity at 

Broome Residential College from 72 to 116 beds.  This was completed in November 2016. 

 

The Department of Education has invested $0.39 million into the upgrading of air-conditioning units at 

City Beach Residential College.  New air-conditioning units are being installed in 15 townhouses at the 

residential college and were completed in April 2017. 

 

In March 2017, the State Government confirmed the $6.4 million building upgrade at City Beach 

Residential College.  This build will provide recreational facilities, kitchen, dining room and administrative 

facilities, tutoring and music practice room purpose -built for a residential college setting. Construction 

will begin in 2018 ready for student use in 2019. 

 



FFIINNAALL  RREEPPOORRTT  22001166--1177  

 

17 
 

School Boarding Facilities Legislation Amendment and Repeal Bill 2016 

 

Following the tabling of the Hon Peter Blaxell’s inquiry into St Andrews Hostel in Katanning, the 

Government gave in-principle support for the incorporation of the Country High School Hostels Authority 

into the Department of Education.  In December 2013, Cabinet approved the progression of draft 

legislation to repeal the Country High School Hostels Authority Act 1960 and to amend the School Education 

Act 1999 to accommodate the integration of the Authority into the Department. 

 

The School Boarding Facilities Legislation Amendment and Repeal Bill 2016 will provide a strengthened 

governance model for residential colleges, ensuring transparent accountability and reporting lines.  The bill 

passed both Houses of Parliament on 16 November 2016 and was proclaimed on 1 July 2017.  This bill 

enabled the functions of the Authority to be undertaken by the Department of Education.  The legislative 

changes have resulted in: 

 minimal, if any, change to the day-to-day boarding arrangements for students or operation of the 

residential colleges; 

 236 staff of the Authority becoming employees of the Department and retaining all awards and 

conditions they had as staff of the Authority; 

 replacement of local boards of management with advisory committees; and 

 residential colleges reporting under the governance of the Department. 
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Disclosures and Legal Compliance 
 

 

 

Financial Statements 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Certification of Financial Statements 
For the year ended 30 June 2017 

 

The accompanying financial statements of the Country High School Hostels Authority have been prepared 

in compliance with the provisions of the Financial Management Act 2006 from proper accounts and records 

to present fairly the financial transactions for the year ended 30 June 2017 and the financial position as at  

30 June 2017.  At the date of signing, I am not aware of any circumstances that would render the particulars 

included in the financial statements misleading or inaccurate. 

 

 
 

Dudley Smith  

REPORTING OFFICER  

 

29 August 2017 
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Statement of Comprehensive Income   
 

For the year ended 30 June 2017     

 Note 2016/17  2015/16 

COST OF SERVICES    $'000    $'000 

Expenses     

Employee benefits expense 4 8,714  7,581 

Supplies and services  7 830  652 

Food supplies 8 1,103  992 

Domestic  1,342  1,381 

Maintenance  931  846 

Amenities  192  153 

Motor vehicle  135  123 

Canteen  13  5 

Depreciation and amortisation expense 5 2,358  2,277 

Finance costs 6 641  718 

Loss on disposal of non-current assets 12 -  2 

Other expenses 9 510  279 

Total Cost of Services  16,769  15,009 

Income     

Revenue     

Boarding fees 10 8,525  8,265 

Other revenue 11 525  423 

Total Revenue  9,050  8,688 

Gains     

Gain on disposal of non-current assets 12 26   

Total Gains  26   

     

Total Income other than Income from State Government  9,076  8,688 

NET COST OF SERVICES  7,693  6,321 

     

Income from State Government 13    

Service appropriation  5,772  5,844 

Services received free of charge  203  135 

Royalties for Regions Fund  93  72 

Total Income from State Government  6,068  6,051 

(DEFICIT)/SURPLUS FOR THE PERIOD  (1,625)  (270) 

     

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME     

Item not reclassified subsequently to profit or loss     

Changes in asset revaluation surplus 24 (4,786)  4,034 

Total other comprehensive income  (4,786)  4,034 

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE PERIOD  (6,411)  3,764 

 

The Statement of Comprehensive Income should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. 

 



FFIINNAALL  RREEPPOORRTT  22001166--1177  

 

24 
 

Statement of Financial Position    
As at 30 June 2017 

 Note 2016/17  2015/16 

  $'000    $'000 

ASSETS     

Current Assets     

Cash and cash equivalents 25 4,147  4,354 

Restricted cash and cash equivalents 16 200  5,667 

Receivables 14 1,281  1,647 

Amounts receivable for services 15 494  494 

Total Current Assets  6,122  12,162 

     

Non-Current Assets     

Restricted cash and cash equivalents 16 48  48 

Receivables 14 720  1,476 

Amounts receivable for services 15 18,321  16,565 

Property, plant and equipment 17 90,038  91,027 

Total Non-Current Assets  109,127  109,116 

 

TOTAL ASSETS 

 

115,249  121,278 

     

LIABILITIES     

Current Liabilities     

Payables 19 206  221 

Borrowings 20 952  951 

Provisions 21 798  415 

Income received in advance 22 439  398 

Other current liabilities 23 150  140 

Total Current Liabilities  2,545  2,125 

     

Non-Current Liabilities     

Payables 19 48  48 

Borrowings 20 12,982  13,933 

Provisions 21 347  486 

Total Non-Current Liabilities  13,377  14,467 

     

TOTAL LIABILITIES  15,922  16,592 

     

NET ASSETS  99,327  104,686 

     

EQUITY 24    

Contributed Equity  72,856  71,804 

Reserves  5,298  10,084 

Accumulated surplus  21,173  22,798 

TOTAL EQUITY  99,327  104,686 

 

The Statement of Financial Position should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. 
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Statement of Changes in Equity   
For the year ended 30 June 2017 

 

 

 Note Contributed 

equity 

Reserves Accumulated 

surplus/ 

(deficit) 

Total equity 

  $000 $000 $000 $000 

Balance at 1 July 2015 24  63,446 6,050 23,068  92,564 

Transactions with owners in 

their capacity as owners: 

     

Capital appropriations   8,358  - -  8,358  

Total  8,358   8,358 

Surplus/(deficit)  - - (270) (270) 

Other comprehensive income  - 4,034 - 4,034 

Total comprehensive income for 

the year 
 - 4,034  (270)  3,764  

Balance at 30 June 2016   71,804 10,084 22,798  104,686 

 

 

 Note Contributed 

equity 

Reserves Accumulated 

surplus/ 

(deficit) 

Total equity 

  $000 $000 $000 $000 

Balance at 1 July 2016 24  71,804 10,084 22,798  104,686 

Transactions with owners in 

their capacity as owners: 

     

Capital appropriations   1,052  - -  1,052  

Total  1,052 - - 1,052 

Surplus/(deficit)  - - (1,625) (1,625) 

Other comprehensive income  - (4,786) - (4,786) 

Total comprehensive income for 

the year 
 - (4,786)  (1,625)  (6,411) 

Balance at 30 June 2017   72,856 5,298 21,173  99,327 

 

 

The Statement of Changes in Equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. 
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Statement of Cash Flows   
For the year ended 30 June 2017 

 Note 2016/17  2015/16 

    $'000    $'000 

CASH FLOWS FROM STATE GOVERNMENT     

Service appropriation  3,522  3,594 

Capital appropriation  952  958 

Holding account drawdown  494  494 

Royalties for Regions Fund  193  7,472 

Net cash provided by State Government  5,161  12,518 

     

     

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES    

Payments     

Employee benefits  (8,475)  (7,799) 

Supplies and services  (4,758)  (4,365) 

Finance costs   (655)  (772) 

GST payments on purchases  (971)  (1,242) 

     

Receipts     

Boarding fees  8,665  8,308 

Interest received  40  47 

GST receipts on sales  1,152  1,215 

Other receipts  1,248  1,207 

Net cash provided by/(used in) operating activities 25 (3,754)  (3,401) 

     

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES     

Payments     

Purchase of non- current physical assets  (6,155)  (9,016) 

Receipts     

Proceeds from sale of non-current physical assets  26  49 

Net cash provided by/(used in) investing activities  (6,129)  (8,967) 

     

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES     

Payments     

Repayment of borrowings  (952)  (958) 

Receipts     

Proceeds of borrowings  -  - 

Net cash provided by/(used in) financing activities  (952)  (958) 

     

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents  (5,674)  (809) 

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period 10,069  10,878 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF 

THE PERIOD 

25 

4,395 

 

10,069 

 

The Statement of Cash Flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.  
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2017 

 
1. Australian Accounting Standards 

 

 The Authority’s financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2017 have been 

prepared in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards. The term ‘Australian 

Accounting Standards’ includes Standards and Interpretations issued by the Australian 

Accounting Standard Board (AASB). 

 

The Authority has adopted any applicable new and revised Australian Accounting 

Standards from their operative dates. 

 

 

 Early adoption of standards 

 

    

 The Authority cannot early adopt an Australian Accounting Standard unless 

specifically permitted by Treasurer’s Instruction 1101 Application of Australian 

Accounting Standards and Other Pronouncements.  Partial exemption permitting early 

adoption of AASB 2015-7 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Fair Value 

Disclosures of Not-for Profit Public Sector Entities has been granted.  Aside from AASB 

2015-7, there has been no early adoption of any other Australian Accounting Standards 

that have been issued or amended (but not operative) by the Authority for the annual 

reporting period ended 30 June 2017. 
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

 

 a) General Statement 

The Authority is a not-for-profit reporting entity that prepares general purpose 

financial statements in accordance with the Australian Accounting Standards, the 

Framework, Statements of Accounting Concepts and other authoritative 

pronouncements of the Australian Accounting Standards Board (AASB) as applied by 

the Treasurer’s Instructions.  Several of these are modified by the Treasurer's 

Instructions to vary application, disclosure, format and wording.   

 

The Financial Management Act 2006 and the Treasurer’s Instructions impose legislative 

provisions that govern the preparation of financial statements and take precedence 

over Accounting Standards, the Framework, Statements of Accounting Concepts and 

other authoritative pronouncements of the Australian Accounting Standards Board 

(AASB).  

 

Where modification is required and has had a material or significant financial effect 

upon the reported results, details of that modification and the resulting financial effect 

are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. 

 

 b) Basis of Preparation 

The financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting using 

the historical cost convention, except for land and buildings, which have been 

measured at fair value. 

 

The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial statements have 

been consistently applied throughout all periods presented unless otherwise stated. 

 

The financial statements are presented in Australian dollars and all values are rounded 

to the nearest thousand dollars ($'000). 

 

After assessing possible sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, the 

Authority considers that there is no significant risk of any matter causing a material 

adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial 

year.  

 

The Country High School Hostels Authority was abolished on 30 June 2017. All assets 

and liabilities of Country High School Hostels Authority as at 30 June 2017 were 

transferred to the Department of Education on 1 July 2017 as opening balance. 

 

 c) Reporting Entity 

The reporting entity comprises the Authority.  There are no related bodies. 

 

The Country High School Hostels Authority was abolished on 30 June 2017.  All the 

assets and liabilities of the Country High School Hostels Authority were transferred to 

the Department of Education on 1 July 2017. 
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 d) Contributed Equity 

 AASB Interpretation 1038 Contributions by Owners Made to Wholly-Owned Public 

Sector Entities requires transfers in the nature of equity contributions, other than as a 

result of a restructure of administrative arrangements, to be designated by the State 

Government (the owner) as contributions by owners (at the time of, or prior to transfer) 

before such transfers can be recognised as equity contributions.  Capital appropriations 

have been designated as contributions by owners by Treasurer’s Instruction 955 

Contributions by Owners made to Wholly Owned Public Sector Entities and have been 

credited directly to Contributed Equity. 

 

The transfers of net assets to/from other agencies, other than as result of a restructure of 

administrative arrangements, are designated as contributions by owners where the 

transfers are non-discretionary and non-reciprocal. 

 

 e) Income 

 Revenue Recognition 

Revenue is recognised and measured at the fair value of consideration received or 

receivable.  Revenue is recognised for the major business activities as follows: 
 

Boarding Fees, Amenities Fees and Canteen Revenue 

Revenue is recognised on delivery of the service to the client or by reference to the 

stage of completion of the transaction. 
 

Interest 

Revenue is recognised as the interest accrues.  
 

Service Appropriations 

Service appropriations are recognised as revenues at fair value in the period in which 

the Authority gains control of the appropriated funds. The Authority gains control of 

appropriated funds at the time those funds are deposited to the bank account or 

credited to the ‘Amounts receivable for services’ (holding account) held at Treasury.  

(See note 13 ‘Income from State Government’) 
 

Grants, Donations, Gifts & other non-reciprocal contributions 

Grants, donations, gifts and other non-reciprocal contributions are recognised at fair 

value when the Authority obtains control over the assets comprising the contributions, 

usually when cash is received. 
 

Other non-reciprocal contributions that are not contributions by owners are recognised 

at their fair value. Contributions of services are only recognised when a fair value can 

be reliably determined and the services would be purchased if not donated. 
 

Royalties for Regions funds are recognised as revenue at fair value in the period in 

which the Authority obtains control over the funds.  The Authority obtains control of 

the funds at the time the funds are deposited into the Authority’s bank account. 

 

Gains 

Realised and unrealised gains are usually recognised on a net basis.  These include 

gains arising on the disposal of non-current assets and some revaluations of             

non-current assets.  
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 f) Borrowing Costs 

 Borrowing costs for qualifying assets are capitalised net of any investment income 

earned on the unexpended portion of the borrowings. Other borrowing costs are 

expensed when incurred. 

 

The capitalisation rate used to determine the amount of borrowing costs to be 

capitalised is the weighted average interest rate applicable to the Authority’s 

outstanding borrowings during the year, in this case 4.0% (2016: 4.5%). 

 

 g) Property, Plant and Equipment 

 Capitalisation/expensing of assets 

Items of property, plant, and equipment and infrastructure costing $5,000 or more are 

recognised as assets and the cost of utilising assets is expensed (depreciated) over their 

useful lives.  Items of property, plant and equipment and infrastructure costing less 

than $5,000 are immediately expensed direct to the Statement of Comprehensive 

Income (other than where they form part of a group of similar items which are 

significant in total). 

 

Initial recognition and measurement 

All items of property, plant and equipment and infrastructure are initially recognised 

at cost.   

 

For items of property, plant and equipment and infrastructure acquired at no cost or 

for nominal cost, the cost is the fair value at the date of acquisition. 

 

Subsequent measurement 

Subsequent to initial recognition as an asset, the revaluation model is used for the 

measurement of land, buildings and infrastructure and historical cost for all other 

property, plant and equipment.  Land, buildings and infrastructure are carried at fair 

value less accumulated depreciation (buildings and infrastructure only) and 

accumulated impairment losses.  All other items of property, plant and equipment are 

stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment 

losses. 

 

Where market-based evidence is available, the fair value of land and buildings is 

determined on the basis of current market buying values determined by reference to 

recent market transactions.  When buildings are revalued by reference to recent market 

transactions, the accumulated depreciation is eliminated against the gross carrying 

amount of the asset and the net amount restated to the revalued amount.  



FFIINNAALL  RREEPPOORRTT  22001166--1177  

 

32 
 

 
 In the absence of market-based evidence, fair value of land and buildings is determined 

on the basis of existing use.  This normally applies where buildings are specialised or 

where land use is restricted.  Fair value for existing use buildings is determined by 

reference to the cost of replacing the remaining future economic benefits embodied in 

the asset, i.e. the depreciated replacement cost.  Where the fair value of buildings is 

determined on the depreciated replacement cost basis, the gross carrying amount and 

the accumulated depreciation are restated proportionately.  Fair value for restricted use 

land is determined by comparison with market evidence for land with similar 

approximate utility (high restricted use land) or market value of comparable 

unrestricted land (low restricted use land). 

 

 

 

Land and buildings are independently valued annually by the Western Australian 

Land Information Authority (Landgate) and recognised annually to ensure that the 

carrying amount does not differ materially from the asset’s fair value at the end of the 

reporting period. 

 

The most significant assumptions and judgements in estimating fair value are made in 

assessing whether to apply the existing use basis to assets and in determining 

estimated economic life.  Professional judgement by the valuer is required where the 

evidence does not provide a clear distinction between market type assets and existing 

use assets. 

 

Refer to note 17 ‘Property, Plant and Equipment’ for further information on 

revaluations. 

 

Derecognition 

Upon disposal or derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment and 

infrastructure, any revaluation surplus relating to that asset is retained in the asset 

revaluation surplus. 

 

Asset revaluation surplus 

The asset revaluation surplus is used to record increments and decrements on the 

revaluation of non-current assets as described in note 17 ‘Property, plant and 

equipment’. 

 

Depreciation 

All non-current assets having a limited useful life are systematically depreciated over 

their estimated useful lives in a manner that reflects the consumption of their future 

economic benefits.  Land is not depreciated.  Depreciation is calculated using the 

straight line method, using rates which are reviewed annually.   

 

Estimated useful lives for each class of depreciable asset are: 

 

Buildings 40 years (rate of 2.5% per annum)                                                 

Plant equipment and furniture 3 – 10 years (rate of 10% - 33% per annum) 

Motor vehicles 5 – 10 years (rate of 10% - 20% per annum) 
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 h) Impairment of Assets 

 Property, plant and equipment, infrastructure and intangible assets are tested for any 

indication of impairment at the end of each reporting period.  Where there is an 

indication of impairment, the recoverable amount is estimated.  Where the recoverable 

amount is less than the carrying amount, the asset is considered impaired and is 

written down to the recoverable amount and an impairment loss is recognised.  Where 

an asset measured at cost is written down to recoverable amount, an impairment loss is 

recognised in profit or loss.  Where a previously revalued asset is written down to 

recoverable amount, the loss is recognised as a revaluation decrement in other 

comprehensive income.  As the Authority is a not-for-profit entity, unless an asset has 

been identified as a surplus asset, the recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair 

value less costs to sell and depreciated replacement cost. 

  

The risk of impairment is generally limited to circumstances where an asset’s 

depreciation is materially understated, where the replacement cost is falling or where 

there is a significant change in useful life.  Each relevant class of assets is reviewed 

annually to verify that the accumulated depreciation/amortisation reflects the level of 

consumption or expiration of the asset’s future economic benefits and to evaluate any 

impairment risk from falling replacement costs. 

 

The recoverable amount of assets identified as surplus assets is the higher of fair value 

less costs to sell and the present value of future cash flows expected to be derived from 

the asset. Surplus assets carried at fair value have no risk of material impairment where 

fair value is determined by reference to market-based evidence.  Where fair value is 

determined by reference to depreciated replacement cost, surplus assets are at risk of 

impairment and the recoverable amount is measured.  Surplus assets at cost are tested 

for indications of impairment at the end of each reporting period. 

 

Refer to note 17 ‘Property, Plant & Equipment’ and note 26 ‘Impairment of Assets’ for 

the outcome of impairment reviews and testing. Refer also to note 2(n) ‘Receivables’ 

and note 14 ‘Receivables’ for impairment of receivables.  

 

 i) Leases 

 The Authority holds an operating lease for two motor vehicles. Lease payments are 

expensed on a straight line basis over the lease term as this represents the patterns of 

benefits derived from the vehicle.  

 

 

 

 j) Financial Instruments 

 In addition to cash and bank overdraft, the Authority has two categories of financial 

instrument: 

 Loans and receivables; and 

 Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost. 
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Financial instruments have been disaggregated into the following classes: 

 Financial Assets 

o Cash and cash equivalents 

o Restricted cash and cash equivalents 

o Receivables 

o Amounts receivable for services 

 

 Financial Liabilities 

o Payables 

o WATC/Bank borrowings 

o Other liabilities 

 

Initial recognition and measurement of financial instruments is at fair value which normally equates 

to the transaction cost or the face value.  Subsequent measurement is at amortised cost using the 

effective interest method. 

 

The fair value of short-term receivables and payables is the transaction cost or the face value because 

there is no interest rate applicable and subsequent measurement is not required as the effect of 

discounting is not material. 

 

 k) Cash and cash equivalents 

 For the purpose of the Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalent (and 

restricted cash and cash equivalent) assets comprise cash on hand and short-term 

deposits with original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to 

a known amount of cash and which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value. 

 

 l) Accrued salaries 

 Accrued salaries (see note 23 ‘Other Liabilities’) represent the amount due to staff but 

unpaid at the end of the financial year.  Accrued salaries are settled within a fortnight 

of the financial year end.  The Authority considers the carrying amount of accrued 

salaries to be equivalent to its fair value. 

 

 m) Amounts receivable for services (Holding Account) 

 The Authority receives income from the State Government partly in cash and partly as 

an asset (holding account receivable).  The holding account receivable balance, 

resulting from service appropriation funding, is accessible on the emergence of the 

cash funding requirement to cover leave entitlements and asset replacement. 

 

See also note 13 'Income from State Government' and note 15 'Amounts Receivable for 

Services' 
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 n) Receivables 

 Receivables are recognised at original invoice amount less an allowance for any 

uncollectable amounts (i.e. impairment).  The collectability of receivables is reviewed on 

an ongoing basis and any receivables identified as uncollectable are written-off against 

the allowance account.  The allowance for uncollectable amounts (doubtful debts) is 

raised when there is objective evidence that the Authority will not be able to collect the 

debts.  The carrying amount is equivalent to fair value as it is due for settlement within 

30 days.   

 

 o) Payables 

 Payables are recognised at the amounts payable when the Authority becomes obliged 

to make future payments as a result of a purchase of assets or services.  The carrying 

amount is equivalent to fair value, as accounts are generally settled within 30 days.   

 

 

 p) Borrowings 

 All loans are initially recognised at cost, being the fair value of the net proceeds 

received.  Subsequent measurement is at amortised cost using the effective interest rate 

method.   

 

 q) Provisions 

 Provisions are liabilities of uncertain timing and amount and are recognised where 

there is a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event and when 

the outflow of embodying economic benefits is probable and a reliable estimate can be 

made of the amount of the obligation.  Provisions are reviewed at the end of each 

reporting period.  (See note 21 'Provisions'.) 

 

Provisions – Employee Benefits 

All annual leave and long service leave provisions are in respect of employees’ services 

up to the end of the reporting period. 

 

Annual Leave  

Annual leave is not expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the 

reporting period and is therefore considered to be other long-term employee benefits.  

The annual leave liability is recognised and measured at the present value of amounts 

expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled using the remuneration rate expected 

to apply at the time of settlement. 

 

When assessing expected future payments consideration is given to expected future 

wage and salary levels including non-salary components such as employer 

superannuation contributions, as well as the experience of employee departures and 

periods of service.  The expected future payments are discounted using market yields 

at the end of the reporting period on national government bonds with terms to 

maturity that match, as closely as possible, the estimated future cash outflows. 

 

The provision for annual leave is classified as a current liability as the Authority does 

not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months 

after the end of the reporting period. 
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Long Service Leave 

Long service leave that is not expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the 

end of the reporting period is recognised and measured at the present value of amounts 

expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled using the remuneration rate expected 

to apply at the time of settlement. 

 

When assessing expected future payments consideration is given to expected future 

wage and salary levels including non-salary components such as employer 

superannuation contributions, as well as the experience of employee departures and 

periods of service.  The expected future payments are discounted using market yields at 

the end of the reporting period on national government bonds with terms to maturity 

that match, as closely as possible, the estimated future cash outflows. 

 

Unconditional long service leave provisions are classified as current liabilities as the 

Authority does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at 

least 12 months after the end of the reporting period.  Pre-conditional and conditional 

long service leave provisions are classified as non-current liabilities because the 

Authority has an unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability until the 

employee has completed the requisite years of service.  

 

Superannuation 

The Government Employees Superannuation Board (GESB) and other funds administer 

public sector superannuation arrangements in Western Australia in accordance with 

legislative requirements.  Eligibility criteria for membership in particular schemes for 

public sector employees vary according to commencement and implementation dates. 

 

Eligible employees contribute to the Pension Scheme, a defined benefit pension scheme 

closed to new members since 1987, or the Gold State Superannuation Scheme (GSS), a 

defined benefit lump sum scheme now also closed to new members since 1995. 

  

Employees commencing employment prior to 16 April 2007 who were not members of 

either the Pension Scheme or the GSS became non-contributory members of the West 

State Superannuation Scheme (WSS).  Employees commencing employment on or after 

16 April 2007 became members of the GESB Super Scheme (GESBS).  From                     

30 March 2012, existing members of the WSS or GESBS and new employees have been 

able to choose their preferred superannuation fund provider.  The Authority makes 

contributions to GESB or other fund providers on behalf of employees in compliance 

with the Commonwealth Government’s Superannuation Guarantee (Administration) 

Act 1992.  Contributions to these accumulation schemes extinguish the Authority’s 

liability for superannuation charges in respect of employees who are not members of 

the Pension Scheme or GSS. 

 

The GSS is a defined benefit scheme for the purposes of employees and whole-of-

government reporting.  However, it is a defined contribution plan for agency purposes 

because the concurrent contributions (defined contributions) made by the Authority to 

GESB extinguishes the agency’s obligations to the related superannuation liability. 
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 The Authority has no liabilities under the Pension or the GSS. The liabilities for the 

unfunded Pension Scheme and the unfunded GSS transfer benefits attributable to 

members who transferred from the Pension Scheme, are assumed by the Treasurer.    

All other GSS obligations are funded by concurrent contributions made by the 

Authority to the GESB.  

 

The GESB makes all benefit payments in respect of the Pension Scheme and GSS, and is 

recouped from the Treasurer for the employer’s share.  

 

Provisions Other  

 

Employment On-costs 

Employment on-costs, including workers’ compensation insurance, are not employee 

benefits and are recognised as separate liabilities and expenses when the employment 

to which they relate has occurred.  Employment on-costs are included as part of 'Other 

expenses' and are not included as part of the Authority's 'Employee benefits expense'.  

The related liability is included in 'Employment on-costs provision'.   

 

 r) Superannuation Expense 

 The superannuation expense in the Statement of Comprehensive Income comprises 

employer contributions paid to the GSS (concurrent contributions), the West State 

Superannuation Scheme (WSS) and the GESB Super Scheme (GESBS), or other 

superannuation funds. 

 

 s) Assets and Services Received Free of Charge or for Nominal Value 

 Assets or services received free of charge or for nominal value that can be reliably 

measured are recognised as revenues and as assets or expenses as appropriate at fair 

value where they can be reliably measured. 

 

Where assets or services are received from another State Government agency, these are 

separately disclosed under Income from State Government in the Statement of 

Comprehensive Income. 
 

 t) Comparative Figures 

 Comparative figures are, where appropriate, reclassified to be comparable with the 

figures presented in the current financial year. 
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3. Disclosure of Changes in Accounting Policy and Estimates 

 

a) Initial application of an Australian Accounting Standard 

The Authority has applied the following Australian Accounting Standards effective, or 

adopted, for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 July 2016 that impacted 

on the Authority.  

 

AASB 1057 Application of Australian Accounting Standards 

This Standard lists the application paragraphs for each other Standard 

(and Interpretation), grouped where they are the same. There is no 

financial impact. 

AASB 2014-3 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards - Accounting for 

Acquisitions of Interests in Joint Operations [AASB 1 & 11] 

The Authority establishes Joint Operations in pursuit of its objectives 

and does not routinely acquire interests in Joint Operations.  Therefore, 

there is no financial impact on application of the Standard. 

AASB 2014-4 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards - Clarification of Acceptable 

Methods of Depreciation and Amortisation [AASB 116 & 138] 

The adoption of this Standard has no financial impact for the Authority 

as depreciation and amortisation is not determined by reference to 

revenue generation, but by reference to consumption of future economic 

benefits. 

AASB 2014-9 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards - Equity Method in 

Separate Financial Statements [AASB 1, 127 & 128] 

This Standard amends AASB 127, and consequentially amends AASB 1 

and AASB 128, to allow entities to use the equity method of accounting 

for investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates in their 

separate financial statements.  As the Authority has no joint ventures 

and associates, the application of the Standard has no financial impact. 

AASB 2015-1 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards - Annual Improvements to 

Australian Accounting Standards 2012-2014 Cycle [AASB 1, 2, 3, 5, 7, 11, 

110, 119, 121, 133, 134, 137 & 140] 

These amendments arise from the issuance of International Financial 

Reporting Standard Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle in 

September 2014, and editorial corrections.  The Authority has 

determined that the application of the Standard has no financial impact. 
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AASB 2015-2 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards - Disclosure Initiative: 

Amendments to AASB 101 [AASB 7, 101, 134 & 1049] 

This Standard amends AASB 101 to provide clarification regarding the 

disclosure requirements in AASB 101.  Specifically, the Standard 

proposes narrow-focus amendments to address some of the concerns 

expressed about existing presentation and disclosure requirements and 

to ensure entities are able to use judgement when applying a Standard 

in determining what information to disclose in their financial 

statements.  There is no financial impact. 

ASB 2015-6 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards - Extending Related Party 

Disclosures to Not-for-Profit Public Sector Entities [AASB 10, 124 & 1049] 

The amendments extend the scope of AASB 124 to include application 

by not-for-profit public sector entities. Implementation guidance is 

included to assist application of the Standard by not-for-profit public 

sector entities. There is no financial impact. 

AASB 2015-10 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards   Effective Date of 

Amendments to AASB 10 & 128 

This Standard defers the mandatory effective date (application date) of 

amendments to AASB 10 & AASB 128 that were originally made in 

AASB 2014-10 so that the amendments are required to be applied for annual 

reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018 instead of 

1 January 2016. There is no financial impact. 
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b) Future impact of Australian Accounting Standards not yet operative 

The Authority cannot early adopt an Australian Accounting Standard unless 

specifically permitted by TI 1101 Application of Australian Accounting Standards and Other 

Pronouncements or by an exemption from TI 1101. By virtue of a limited exemption, the 

Authority has early adopted AASB 2015-7 Amendments to Australian Accounting 

Standards – Fair Value Disclosures of Not-for-Profit Public Sector Entities. Where applicable, 

the Authority plans to apply the following Australian Accounting Standards from their 

application date. 

AASB 9 Financial Instruments 
(Operative for reporting periods beginning on/after 1 Jan 2018) 

This Standard supersedes AASB 139 Financial Instruments: 

Recognition and Measurement, introducing a number of changes to 

accounting treatments. 

The mandatory application date of this Standard is currently  

1 January 2018 after being amended by AASB 2012-6, AASB 2013-9, 

and AASB 2014-1 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards. 

The Authority has not yet determined the application or the 

potential impact of the Standard. 

AASB 15  Revenue from Contracts with Customers 
(Operative for reporting periods beginning on/after 1 Jan 2019) 

This Standard establishes the principles that the Authority shall 

apply to report useful information to users of financial statements 

about the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and 

cash flows arising from a contract with a customer.  

The Authority's income is principally derived from appropriations 

which will be measured under AASB 1058 Income of Not-for-Profit 

Entities and will be unaffected by this change.  However, the 

Authority has not yet determined the potential impact of the 

Standard on ‘User charges and fees’ and ‘Sales’ revenues.  In broad 

terms, it is anticipated that the terms and conditions attached to 

these revenues will defer revenue recognition until the Authority 

has discharged its performance obligations. 
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AASB 16 Leases 
(Operative for reporting period beginning on/after 1 Jan 2019) 

 This Standard introduces a single lessee accounting model and 

requires a lessee to recognise assets and liabilities for all leases with 

a term of more than 12 months, unless the underlying asset is of low 

value. The Authority has not yet determined the application or 

potential impact of the Standard. 

Whilst the impact of AASB 16 has not yet been quantified, the entity 

currently has operating lease commitments of $6,301 as at 30 June 

2017 which is over a one year period. The worth of non-cancellable 

operating leases which the Authority anticipates most of this 

amount will be brought onto the statement of financial position, 

excepting amounts pertinent to short-term or low-value leases. 

Interest and amortisation expense will increase and rental expense 

will decrease. 

AASB 1058 Income of Not-for-Profit Entities 
(Operative for reporting period beginning on/after 1 Jan 2019) 

This Standard clarifies and simplifies the income recognition 

requirements that apply to not-for-profit (NFP) entities, more 

closely reflecting the economic reality of NFP entity transactions 

that are not contracts with customers. Timing of income recognition 

is dependent on whether such a transaction gives rise to a liability, 

or a performance obligation (a promise to transfer a good or 

service), or, an obligation to acquire an asset.  The Authority has 

not yet determined the application or the potential impact of the 

Standard. 
 

AASB 2010-7 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from AASB 9 

(December 2010) [AASB 1, 3, 4, 5, 7, 101, 102, 108, 112, 118, 120, 121, 

127, 128, 131, 132, 136, 137, 139, 1023 & 1038 and Int 2, 5, 10, 12, 19 & 

127] 
(Operative for reporting periods beginning on/after 1 Jan 2018) 

This Standard makes consequential amendments to other Australian 

Accounting Standards and Interpretations as a result of issuing 

AASB 9 in December 2010. 

The mandatory application date of this Standard has been amended 

by AASB 2012-6 and AASB 2014-1 to 1 January 2018. The Authority 

has not yet determined the application or the potential impact of the 

Standard. 

AASB 2014-1            Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards 
(Operative for reporting periods beginning on/after 1 Jan 2018) 

Part E of this Standard makes amendments to AASB 9 and 

consequential amendments to other Standards. It has not yet been 

assessed by the Authority to determine the application or potential 

impact of the Standard. 
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AASB 2014-5 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from AASB 15 
(Operative for reporting periods beginning on/after 1 Jan 2018) 

This Standard gives effect to the consequential amendments to 

Australian Accounting Standards (including Interpretations) arising 

from the issuance of AASB 15. The mandatory application date of 

this Standard has been amended by AASB 2015-8 to 1 January 2018.  

The Authority has not yet determined the application or the 

potential impact of the Standard. 

AASB 2014-7 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from AASB 9 

(December 2014) 
(Operative for reporting periods beginning on/after 1 Jan 2018) 

This Standard gives effect to the consequential amendments to 

Australian Accounting Standards (including Interpretations) arising 

from the issuance of AASB 9 (December 2014). The Authority has 

not yet determined the application or the potential impact of the 

Standard. 

AASB 2014-10  Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Sale or Contribution 

of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture [AASB 10 

& 128] 
(Operative for reporting periods beginning on/after 1 Jan 2018) 

This Standard amends AASB 10 and AASB 128 to address an 

inconsistency between the requirements in AASB 10 and those in 

AASB 128 (August 2011), in dealing with the sale or contribution of 

assets between an investor and its associate or joint venture. The 

mandatory effective date (application date) for the Standard has 

been deferred to 1 January 2018 by AASB 2015-10.  The Authority 

has determined that the Standard has no financial impact. 

AASB 2015-8 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Effective Date of  

AASB 15 
(Operative for reporting periods beginning on/after 1 Jan 2019) 

This Standard amends the mandatory effective date (application 

date) of AASB 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers so that AASB 

15 is required to be applied for annual reporting periods beginning 

on or after 1 January 2018 instead of 1 January 2017. For 

Not-For-Profit entities, the mandatory effective date has 

subsequently been amended to 1 January 2019 by AASB 2016-7.  The 

Authority has not yet determined the application or the potential 

impact of AASB 15. 

AASB 2016-2 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Disclosure Initiative: 

Amendments to AASB 107 
(Operative for reporting periods beginning on/after 1 Jan 2017) 

This Standard amends AASB 107 Statement of Cash Flows (August 

2015) to require disclosures that enable users of financial statements 

to evaluate changes in liabilities arising from financing activities, 

including both changes arising from cash flows and non-cash 

changes. There is not financial impact. 
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AASB 2016-3 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Clarifications to 

AASB 15 
(Operative for reporting periods beginning on/after 1 Jan 2018) 

 This Standard clarifies identifying performance obligations, 

principal versus agent considerations, timing of recognising revenue 

from granting a licence, and, provides further transitional provisions 

to AASB 15. The Authority has not yet determined the application or 

the potential impact. 

AASB 2016-4 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Recoverable Amount 

of Non-Cash-Generating Specialised Assets of Not-for-Profit Entities 
(Operative for reporting periods beginning on/after 1 Jan 2017) 

This Standard clarifies that the recoverable amount of primarily non-

cash-generating assets of not-for-profit entities, which are typically 

specialised in nature and held for continuing use of their service 

capacity, is expected to be materially the same as fair value 

determined under AASB 13 Fair Value Measurement. The Authority 

has not yet determined the application or the potential impact. 

AASB 2016-7 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards - Deferral of AASB 15 

for Not-for-Profit Entities 
(Operative for reporting periods beginning on/after 1 Jan 2017) 

This Standard amends the mandatory effective date (application 

date) of AASB 15 and defers the consequential amendments that 

were originally set out in AASB 2014-5 Amendments to Australian 

Accounting Standards arising from AASB 15 for not-for-profit 

entities to annual reporting periods beginning on or after 

1 January 2019, instead of 1 January 2018.  There is no financial 

impact. 
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AASB 2016-8 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards - Australian 

Implementation Guidance for Not-for-Profit Entities 
(Operative for reporting periods beginning on/after 1 Jan 2017) 

This Standard inserts Australian requirements and authoritative 

implementation guidance for not-for-profit entities into AASB 9 

and AASB 15. This guidance assists not-for-profit entities in 

applying those Standards to particular transactions and other 

events.  There is no financial impact. 

AASB 2017-2 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards - Further Annual 

Improvements 2014-2016 Cycle 
(Operative for reporting periods beginning on/after 1 Jan 2017) 

This Standard clarifies the scope of AASB 12 by specifying that the 

disclosure requirements apply to an entity’s interests in other 

entities that are classified as held for sale, held for distribution to 

owners in their capacity as owners or discontinued operations in 

accordance with AASB 5.  There is no financial impact. 
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    2016/17  2015/16 

         $'000    $'000 

4. Employee Benefits Expense      

 Wages and salaries (1)    6,771  6,011 

 Superannuation - defined contribution plans (2)  683  628 

 Long service leave (3)    234  74 

 Annual leave (3)    468  393 

 Other related expenses    558  475 

       8,714  7,581 

          

 (1) Includes the value of the fringe benefit to the employee plus the fringe benefits 

tax component. 

 (2) Defined contribution plans include West State, Gold State and GESB Super 

Scheme (contributions paid). 

 (3) Includes a superannuation contribution component.    

          

 Employment on-costs such as workers' compensation insurance are included in 'Other 

Expenses' at Note 9.  The employment on-costs liability is included at Note 21 

‘Provisions’. 

          

          

5. Depreciation Expense       

 Buildings     1,932  1,922 

 Plant, equipment and furniture   156  124 

 Buses and mobile equipment   270  231 

 Total depreciation  2,358  2,277 

          

          

          

6. Finance Costs        

 Interest expense     641  718 

       641  718 

          

       

       

7. Supplies and Services       

 Insurance     96  91 

 Authority members' expenses   4  9 

 Marketing     66  30 

 Telephone     66  66 

 Operating leases   11  11 

 Other administration expenses   587  445 

       830  652 
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    2016/17  2015/16 

      $'000    $'000 

8. Food       

 Groceries & Small Goods    550  495 

 Meat    220  202 

 Milk    61  57 

 Bread    76  65 

 Fruit & Vegetables    196  173 

       1,103  992 

  

 

      

9. Other Expenses       

 Workers Compensation (a)   231  90 

 Doubtful Debts Expense    104  73 

 Other    175  116 

     510  279 

        

 (a)  Includes workers’ compensation insurance and other employment on-costs.  The 

on-costs liability associated with the recognition of annual and long service leave 

liability is included at note 21 ‘Provisions’.  Superannuation contributions accrued as 

part of the provision for leave are employee benefits and are not included in 

employment on-costs. 

 

 

      

10. Boarding Fees       

      8,525  8,265 

         8,525  8,265 

          

 The Boarding Fee of $13,660 (includes $182 GST) per student for the 2017 school year is 

collected in three instalments during the year.  The fee is determined by the 

Authority’s Board and approved by the Minister for Education each year. 

 

 

         

11. Other Revenue       

 Amenities     23  17 

 Canteen     17  5 

 Interest     41  44 

 Other     350  266 

 Catholic Education Office   94  91 

       525  423 

 

The increase in other revenue relates to the hiring out of the Colleges during school holidays. 
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  2016/17  2015/16 

         $'000   $'000 

12.  Net Gain / (Loss) on Disposal of Non-Current Assets     

 Carrying amount of Non-Current Assets disposed     

 Plant, equipment and vehicles  -  (51) 

          

 Proceeds from Disposal of Non-Current Assets     

 Plant, equipment and vehicles  26  49 

          

 Net gain / (loss)    26  (2) 

          

 See also note 17 'Property, Plant and Equipment'.     

  

 

        

13. Income from State Government      

 Appropriation received during the period:     

 Service appropriation (a)    5,772  5,844 

       5,772  5,844 

     

 Services received free of charge from other (b)     

 State Government agencies during the period:    

        

  Department of Education     

  - finance and human resource services  203  135 

          

 Royalties for Regions Fund (c)  93  72 

          

       6,068  6,051 

          

  

(a) Service appropriations fund the net cost of services delivered.  Appropriation 

revenue comprises a cash component and a receivable (asset).  The receivable (holding 

account) comprises the budgeted depreciation expense for the year and any agreed 

increase in leave liability during the year. 

 

 (b) Where assets or services have been received free of charge or for nominal cost, the 

Authority recognises revenues equivalent to the fair value of the assets and/or the fair 

value of those services that can be reliably measured and which would have been 

purchased if not donated, and those fair values shall be recognised as assets or 

expenses, as applicable.  The exception occurs where the contribution of assets or 

services are in the nature of contributions by owners, in which case the Authority 

makes the adjustment direct to equity. 

 

 (c) This is a sub-fund within the overarching ‘Royalties for Regions Fund’.  The 

recurrent funds are committed to projects and programs in WA regional areas. 
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     2016/17  2015/16 

       $'000    $'000 

14. Receivables        

 Current        

 Receivables     1,291  1,425 

 Allowance for impairment of receivables  (120)  (68) 

 Accrued revenue    9  7 

 GST receivable    79  259 

 Prepayments     22  24 

       1,281  1,647 

 Non-current     

 Receivables  720  1,476 

   720  1,476 

 
The decrease in non-current relates to an annual payment for the purchase of 45 beds 

at Geraldton by Catholic Education WA. 

Reconciliation of changes in the allowance for impairment of receivables: 

          

 Balance at start of period  68  54 

 Doubtful debts expense   104  73 

 Amounts written off during the period  (52)  (59) 

 Amounts recovered during the period  -  - 

 Balance at end of period  120  68 

      

15. Amounts Receivable for Services (Holding Account)    

 Current     494  494 

 Non-current     18,321  16,565 

       18,815  17,059 

 
Represents the non-cash component of service appropriations (see note 2 m) 'Amounts 

Receivable for Services (Holding Account)'.  It is restricted in that it can only be used 

for asset replacement or payment of leave liability. 

     

16. Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents     

 Current        

 Royalties for Regions Fund (a)   200  5,667 

    200  5,667 

 Non-current        

 Rural Boarding Scholarship Account (b)   48  48 

    48  48 

       248  5,715 

          

 (a) Unspent funds are committed to projects in WA Regional Areas. 

(b) The purpose of the account is to hold security monies deposited by scholarship 

holders.  On completion of a teaching qualification, the funds in the trust account 

will be refunded to the successful scholarship recipient. 
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     2016/17  2015/16 

         $'000    $'000 

17. Property, Plant and Equipment      

  

Land 

      

 At fair value (a)    1,604  1,721 

 Accumulated impairment losses   -  - 

       1,604  1,721 

         

 Buildings        

 At fair value (a)    77,295  76,887 

 Accumulated depreciation    (1,964)  (1,947) 

 Accumulated impairment losses   -  - 

       75,331  74,940 

  

Buildings under construction 

     

 Construction costs   11,398  12,871 

     11,398  12,871 

  

Plant and Equipment 

     

 At cost   1,701  1,429 

 Accumulated depreciation   (1,046)  (1,000) 

 Accumulated impairment losses   -  - 

       655  429 

  

Vehicles 

       

 At cost   2,340  2,181 

 Accumulated depreciation   (1,290)  (1,115) 

 Accumulated impairment losses   -  - 

           1,050  1,066 

       90,038  91,027 

 

 

 (a) Land and buildings were revalued as at 1 July 2016 by the Western Australian 

Land Information Authority (Landgate).  The valuations were performed during the 

year ended 30 June 2017 and recognised at 1 July 2016.  In undertaking the 

revaluation, fair value was determined by reference to market values for land: 

$1,603,900 and buildings $75,331,493.  For the remaining balance, fair value of 

buildings was determined on the basis of depreciated replacement cost and fair value 

of land was determined on the basis of comparison with market evidence for land 

with low level utility (high restricted use land). 
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Reconciliations of the carry amounts of property, plant, equipment and vehicles at the beginning and 

end of the reporting period are set out below. 

 
 Freehold Buildings Buildings Plant and Vehicles Total 

 Land   Under Equipment     

      Construction       

  $'000  $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 

2017             

Carrying amount 

at start of period 

1,721 74,940 12,871 429 1,066 91,027 

Additions - - 5,519 382 254 6,155 

Disposals    (110) (94) (204) 

Transfers   6,992 (6,992) - - - 

Reversal of 

accumulated 

depreciation 

- - - 110 94 204 

Revaluation 

increments/ 

(decrements) 

(117) (4,669) - - - (4,786) 

Depreciation - (1,932) - (156) (270) (2,358) 

Carrying amount 

at  end of period 

1,604 75,331 11,398 655 1,050 90,038 

 

 

 

2016 

            

Carrying amount 

at start of period 

1,335 59,410 18,088 394 1,083 80,310 

Additions   8,587 159 265 9,011 

Disposals   - (52) (257) (309) 

Transfers   13,804 (13,804) - - - 

Reversal of 

accumulated 

depreciation 

 - - 52 206 258 

Revaluation 

increments/ 

(decrements) 

386 3,648 - - - 4,034 

Depreciation - (1,922) - (124) (231) (2,277) 

Carrying amount 

at end of period 

1,721 74,940 12,871 429 1,066 91,027 
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18. Fair value measurements 

Assets measured at fair value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Fair value 

   
 

   
At end of period 

2017 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 

Land - - 1,604 1,604 

Buildings - - 75,331 75,331 

        76,935 76,935 
 

There were no transfers between Levels 1, 2 or 3 during the period. 

    
    

Fair value measurements 

Assets measured at fair value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Fair value 

   
 

   
At end of period 

2016     

Land - - 1,721 1,721 

Buildings - - 74,940 74,940 

        76,661 76,661 
 

There were no transfers between Levels 1, 2 or 3 during the period. 

 

Fair value measurements using significant unobservable inputs (Level 3)  

 Land Buildings 

2017 $'000 $'000 

Fair Value at start of period 1,721 74,940 

Additions   

Revaluation increments/(decrements) recognised in                                                                                                           

Other Comprehensive Income 
(117) (4,669) 

Transfers (from/(to) Level 2) - 6,992 

Disposals   

Depreciation Expense - (1,932) 

Fair Value at end of period 1,604 75,331 

Total gains or losses for the period included in profit or 

loss, under ‘Other Gains’ 
  

Change in unrealised gains or losses for the period 

included in profit or loss for assets held at the end of the 

reporting period 
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Fair value measurements using significant unobservable inputs (Level 3)  

 Land Buildings 

2016 $'000 $'000 

Fair Value at start of period 1,335 59,410 

Additions - 13,804 

Revaluation increments/(decrements) recognised in                                                                                            

Other Comprehensive Income 
386 3,648 

Transfers (from/(to) Level 2) - - 

Disposals - - 

Depreciation Expense - (1,922) 

Fair Value at end of period 1,721 74,940 

Total gains or losses for the period included in profit or 

loss, under ‘Other Gains’ 
- - 

Change in unrealised gains or losses for the period 

included in profit or loss for assets held at the end of the 

reporting period 

- - 

Valuation processes 

There were no changes in valuation techniques during this period. 

Transfers in and out in and out of a fair value level are recognised on the date of the 

event or change in circumstances that caused the transfer. Transfers are generally limited 

to assets newly classified as non-current assets held for sale as Treasurer's instructions 

require valuations of land, buildings and infrastructure to be categorised within Level 3 

where the valuations will utilise significant Level 3 inputs on a recurring basis. 

Land (Level 3 fair values) 

Fair value for restricted use land is based on comparison with market evidence for land 

with low level utility (high restricted use land).  The relevant comparators of land with 

low level utility is selected by the Western Australian Land Information Authority 

(Valuation Services) and represents the application of a significant Level 3 input in this 

valuation methodology.  The fair value measurement is sensitive to values of comparator 

land, with higher values of comparator land correlating with higher estimated fair 

values of land. 

Buildings (Level 3 fair values) 

Fair value for existing use specialised buildings and infrastructure assets is determined 

by reference to the cost of replacing the remaining future economic benefits embodied in 

the asset, i.e. the depreciated replacement cost. Depreciated replacement cost is the 

current replacement cost of an asset less accumulated depreciation calculated on the 

basis of such cost to reflect the already consumed or expired economic benefit, or 

obsolescence, and optimisation (where applicable) of the asset. Current replacement cost 

is generally determined by reference to the market observable replacement cost of a 

substitute asset of comparable utility and the gross project size specifications. 

Valuation using depreciation replacement cost utilises the significant Level 3 input, 

consumed economic benefit/obsolescence of asset which is estimated by the Western 

Australian Land Information Authority (Valuation Services).  The fair value 

measurement is sensitive to the estimate of consumption/obsolescence, with higher 

values of the estimate correlating with lower estimated fair values of buildings and 

infrastructure. 
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Basis of Valuation 

In the absence of market-based evidence, due to the specialised nature of some  

non-financial assets, these assets are valued at Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy on an 

existing use basis. The existing use basis recognises that restrictions or limitations have 

been placed on their use and disposal when they are not determined to be surplus to 

requirements. These restrictions are imposed by virtue of the assets being held to deliver 

a specific community service. 
 

 

Information about significant unobservable inputs (Level 3) in fair value measurements 

 

Description 

and fair 

value as at  

30 June 2017      

$'000 

Description 

and fair 

value as at  

30 June 2016     

$'000 

Valuation 

techniques(s) 

Unobservable 

inputs 

Range of 

unobservable 

inputs 

(weighted 

average)  

2017 

Range of 

unobservable 

inputs 

(weighted 

average)  

2016 

Relationship 

of 

unobservable 

inputs to fair 

value 

Land   

 

($1,604) 

Land    

 

($1,721) 

Market 

approach 

Selection of 

land with 

similar 

approximate 

utility 

$1 - $54 

per m2  

 

($8 per m2) 

$1 - $57 

per m2 

 

($9 per m2) 

Higher value 

of similar 

land 

increases 

estimated fair 

value 

 

Buildings       

 

($75,331) 

Buildings  

 

($74,940) 

Depreciated 

Replacement 

Cost 

Consumed 

economic 

benefit/ 

obsolescence 

of asset 

1.25% - 2% 

per year 

 

(2% per year) 

1.25% - 2% 

per year 

 

(2% per year) 

Greater 

consumption 

of economic 

benefit or 

increased 

obsolescence 

lowers fair 

value 

 

   

Historical 

cost per 

square metre 

floor area 

(m2) 

$733 - $4,513  

per m2  

 

($2,302 per m2) 

$759 - $4,127  

per m2  

 

($2,339 per m2) 

Higher 

historical cost 

per m2 

increases fair 

value 
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Reconciliation of the opening and closing balance are provided in note 26. 

 
 

      2016/17 2015/16 

19. Payables    $’000  $'000 

 Current       

 Trade payables   206  221 

 Non-current       

 Scholarship bonds   48  48 

      254  269 

 See also note 2(o) ‘Payables’ and note 31 ‘Financial 

Instruments’ 

   

       

20.  Borrowings       

 Current       

 WATC loans    952  951 

      952  951 

 Non-current       

 WATC loans    12,982 13,933 

      13,934  14,884 

       

21. Provisions       

 Current       

 Employee benefits provision     

 Annual leave (a)   326  250 

 Long service leave (b)   390  122 

      716  372 

 Other provisions      

 Employment on-costs (c)   82  43 

      798  415 

 Non-current       

 Employee benefits provision     

 Long service leave (b)   311  436 

         

 Other provisions      

 Employment on-costs (c)   36  50 

      347  486 

         

 (a) Annual leave liabilities have been classified as current as there is no unconditional 

right to defer settlement for at least 12 months after the reporting period.  Assessments 

indicate that actual settlement of the liabilities will occur as follows: 
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      2016/17 2015/16 

        $'000   $'000 

 Within 12 months of the end of the reporting period  286  192 

 More than 12 months after the reporting period  78   87   

  364  279 

     

 (b) Long service leave liabilities have been classified as current where there is no 

unconditional right to defer settlement for at least 12 months after the reporting period.  

Assessments indicate that actual settlement of the liabilities will occur as follows: 

          

 Within 12 months of the end of the reporting period  434  136 

 More than 12 months after the reporting period  347  486 

       781  622 

          

 (c) The settlement of annual and long service leave liabilities gives rise to the payment 

of employment on-costs including workers’ compensation premiums.  The provision is 

the present value of expected future payments.  The associated expense, apart from the 

unwinding of the discount (finance cost) is included in 'Other expenses', note 9. 

          

 Movements in Other Provisions      

 Movements in each class of provisions during the financial year, other than employee 

benefits, are set out below: 

 Employment on-cost provision      

 Carrying amount at start of period   93  95 

 Additional provisions recognised   25  (2) 

 Payments/other sacrifices of economic benefits -  - 

 Carrying amount at end of period   118  93 

          

22. Income Received in Advance      

 Current        

 Boarding fees (a)    439  398 

       439  398 

          

 (a) Income received in advance relates to boarding fees received to 30 June 2017 for 

goods and services that will be provided to students in financial year 2016-17. 

       

23. Other Liabilities       

 Current       

 Accrued interest    126  140 

 Accrued salaries    24  - 

 Total current    150  140 
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24. Equity        

          

 The Western Australian Government holds the equity interest in the Authority on 

behalf of the community.  Equity represents the residual interest in the net assets of the 

Authority.   

    2016/17  2015/16 

      $'000    $'000 

 Contributed equity       

 Balance at start of period    71,804  63,446 

 Contributions by owners - Capital contribution (a)  1,052  8,358 

 Balance at end of period    72,856  71,804 

  

(a) Under the Treasurer’s Instruction 955 ‘Contributions by Owners Made to Wholly 

Owned Public Sector Entities’ Capital Contributions (appropriations) have been 

designated as contributions by owners in accordance with AASB Interpretation 1038 

‘Contributions by Owners Made to Wholly-Owned Public Sector Entities’. 

 

 

 

         

 Reserves        

 Asset revaluation surplus      

 Balance at start of period    10,084  6,050 

 Net revaluation increments/(decrements):     

 Land     (117)  386 

 Buildings     (4,669)  3,648 

 Balance at end of period    5,298  10,084 

          

 Accumulated surplus    

 Balance at start of period    22,798  23,068 

 Result for the period    (1,625)  (270) 

 Balance at end of period    21,173  22,798 

        

 Total equity at end of period   99,327  104,686 

     

25. Notes to the Statement of Cash Flows     

          

 Reconciliation of cash       

 Cash at the end of the financial year as shown in the Statement of Cash Flows is 

reconciled to the related items in the Statement of Financial position as follows : 

          

 Cash and cash equivalents 

Restricted cash and cash equivalent         

  

 

 4,147 

        200 

 4,354 

5,667 

 Restricted cash and cash equivalents (Note 16 ‘Restricted 

cash and cash equivalents) 

48  48 

       4,395  10,069 
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 Reconciliation of net cost of services to net cash flows provided by/ (used in) operating 

activities 

          

       2016/17  2015/16 

         $'000    $'000 

 Net cost of services    (7,693)  (6,321) 

 Non-cash items:       

 Services received free of charge (note 13)  203  135 

 Depreciation (note 5)    2,358  2,277 

 Doubtful debts expense  103  73 

 Net Loss/(Gain) on disposal of non-current assets  (26)  2 

 Adjustment for other non-cash items  (101)  (20) 

          

 (Increase)/decrease in assets:      

 Receivables (a)  1,122  725 

          

 Increase/(decrease) in liabilities:      

 Current Payables (a)    (15)  (81) 

 Other  liabilities     10  (282) 

 Income received in advance   41  143 

 Provisions     244  (3) 

          

 Net cash provided by/ (used in) operating activities  (3,754)  (3,352) 

          

 (a) Note that the Australian Taxation Office (ATO) receivable/payable in respect of 

GST and the receivable/payable in respect of the sale/purchase of non-current 

assets are not included in these items as they do not form part of the reconciling 

items. 

 

At the end of the reporting period, the Authority had fully drawn on all financing 

facilities, details of which are disclosed in the financial statements. 

 

26. Impairment of Assets       

          

 There were no indications of impairment to property, plant and equipment at  

30 June 2017. 

 The Authority held no goodwill or intangible assets with an indefinite useful life 

during the reporting period and at balance sheet date there were no intangible assets 

not yet available for use. 
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27. Commitments       

          

 Capital expenditure commitments      

          

 Capital expenditure commitments, being contracted capital 

expenditure additional to the amounts reported in the 

financial statements, are payable as follows: 

   

    2016/17  2015/16 

      $'000    $'000 

       

 Within 1 year     6,395  5,565 

 Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years  4,482  1,482 

 Later than 5 years    -  - 

       10,877  7,047 

          

 The capital commitments include amounts for buildings:  10,877  7,047 

         

 Non-cancellable operating lease commitments     

          

 Commitments for minimum lease payments are payable as 

follows: 

   

     

 Within 1 year     6  11 

 Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years  -  6 

 Later than 5 years    -  - 

       6  17 

          

 Representing:        

 Non-cancellable operating leases   -  - 

          

 The non-cancellable operating lease commitments relate to two motor vehicles. 

          

 These commitments are all exclusive of GST.     

     

     

28. Events Occurring after the end of the Reporting Period     

          

 The Country High School Hostels Authority was abolished on 30 June 2017.  All the 

assets and liabilities of the Country High School Hostels Authority were transferred to 

the Department of Education on 1 July 2017. 
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29. Contingent Assets and Liabilities     

  

No contingent assets exist as at 30 June 2017.  Matters involving legal assistance during 

previous reporting periods raise the possibility of future legal proceedings, but the 

contingent liability cannot be estimated as at 30 June 2017. 

 

30 Explanatory Statement 

 

 Significant variances between estimates and actual results for 2017 and between the 

actual results for 2017 and 2016 are shown below. Significant variances are considered 

to be those greater than 10% or $10 million. 
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Variance 

Note 

Estimate 

2017 

Actual 

2017 

Actual 

2016 

Variance 

between 

estimate 

and 

actual 

Variance 

between 

actual 

results 

for 2017 

and 2016 

  $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 

Statement of Comprehensive 

Income (Controlled Operations) 

      

Employee benefits expense A 8,198 8,714 7,581 (516) (1,133) 

Supplies and services B 1,670 1,731 1,526 (61) (205) 

Accommodation expenses 2 1,410 1,780 1,816 (370) 36 

Depreciation and amortisation     

expense 
 2,250 2,358 2,277 (108) (81) 

Finance costs 1,C 805 641 718 164 77 

Other expenses 3,D 1,107 1,545 1,091 (438) (454) 

Total cost of services  15,440 16,769 15,009 (1,329) (1,760) 

       

Income        

Revenue        

Sale of goods and services 4 9,605 8,525 8,265 (1,080) 260 

Other revenue 5,E 460 551 423 91 128 

Total Revenue  10,065 9,076 8,688 (989) 388 

       

NET COST OF SERVICES  5,375 7,693 6,321 2,318 (1,372) 

       

       

Income from State Government       

Service appropriation  5,772 5,772 5,844 - (72) 

Services received free of charge 6,F 115 203 135 88 68 

Royalties for Regions Fund 7,G 119 93 72 (26) 21 

Total income from State Government 6,006 6,068 6,051 62 17 

SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) FOR THE PERIOD 631 (1,625) (270) (2,256) (1,355) 

       

       

 

 

Changes in asset revaluation 

surplus 
8,H - (4,786) 4,034 (4,786) (8,820) 

Total other comprehensive income - (4,786) 4,034 (4,786) (8,820) 

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE 

INCOME FOR THE PERIOD 
 631 (6,411) 3,764 (7,042) (10,175) 
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Variance 

Note 

Estimate 

2017 

Actual 

2017 

Actual 

2016 

Variance 

between 

estimate 

and 

actual 

Variance 

between 

actual 

results 

for 2017 

and 2016 

  $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 

Statement of Financial Position 

(Controlled Operations) 

      

ASSETS        

Current Assets        

Cash and cash equivalents 9 3,096 4,147 4,354 1,051 (207) 

Restricted cash and cash 

equivalents 
10,I 1,711 200 5,667 (1,511) (5,467) 

Receivables 12,J 1,580 1,281 1,647 (52) (366) 

Amounts receivable for services 11 546 494 494 (299) - 

Total Current Assets  6,933 6,122 12,162 (811) (6,040) 

       

Non-Current Assets        

Restricted cash and cash 

equivalents 
 48 48 48 - - 

Receivables 13,K - 720 1,476 720 (756) 

Amounts receivable for services L 18,269 18,321 16,565 52 1,756 

Property, plant and equipment   93,275 90,038 91,027 (3,237) (989) 

Total Non-Current Assets  111,592 109,127 109,116 (2,465) 11 

TOTAL ASSETS  118,525 115,249 121,278 (3,276) (6,029) 

       

LIABILITIES       

Current Liabilities        

Payables 14 305 206 221 99 15 

Provisions 15,M 406 798 415 (392) (383) 

Other current liabilities  1,585 1,541 1,489 44 (52) 

Total Current Liabilities  2,296 2,545 2,125 (249) (420) 

       

Non-Current Liabilities        

Borrowings  12,986 12,982 13,933 4 951 

Provisions 16,N 499 347 486 152 139 

Other non-current liabilities  47 48 48 (1) 0 

Total Non-Current Liabilities  13,532 13,377 14,467 155 1,090 

TOTAL LIABILITIES  15,828 15,922 16,592 (94) 670 

       

NET ASSETS  102,697 99,327 104,686 (3,370) (6,699) 

        

EQUITY        

Contributed equity  72,855 72,856 71,804 1 1052 

Reserves 17,O 6,050 5,298 10,084 (752) (4,786) 

Accumulated surplus/(deficit) 18 23,792 21,173 22,798 (2,619) (1,625) 
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TOTAL EQUITY  102,697 99,327 104,686 (3,370) (5,359) 

 

Variance 

Note 

Estimate 

2017 

Actual 

2017 

Actual 

2016 

Variance 

between 

estimate 

and 

actual 

Variance 

between 

actual 

results 

for 2017 

and 2016 

  $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 

Statement of Cash Flows 

(Controlled Operations) 

      

CASH FLOWS FROM STATE GOVERNMENT     

Service appropriation  3,522 3,522 3,594 - (72) 

Capital appropriations  952 952 958 - (6) 

Holding account drawdown  494 494 494 - - 

Royalties for Regions Fund 19,P 119 193 7,472 74 (7,279) 

Net cash provided by State Government 5,087 5,161 12,518 74 (7,357) 

       

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES     

Payments        

Employee benefits  (8,198) (8,476) (7,799) (278) (677) 

Supplies and services  (1,739) (1,726) (1,667) 13 (59) 

Accommodation 20 (1,400) (1,785) (1,825) (385) 40 

Other payments 21 (2,286) (2,872) (2,887) (586) 15 

        

Receipts        

Sale of goods and services 22 9,565 8,665 8,308 (900) 357 

GST receipts on sales 23 500 1,152 1,215 652 (63) 

Other receipts 24 460 1,288 1,303 828 (15) 

Net cash provided by/(used in)     

operating activities 
 (3,098) (3,754) (3,352) (656) (402) 

       

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES     

Payments        

Purchase of non-current physical 

assets 
25,Q (494) (6,155) (9,016) (5,661) 2,861 

Receipts       

Proceeds from sale of non-current 

physical assets 
 - 26 49 26 (23) 

Net cash provided by/(used in)     

investing activities 
 (494) (6,129) (8,967) (5,635) 2,838 

        

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES     

Payments        

Repayment of borrowings  (952) (952) (959) - 8 

Receipts       

Proceeds of borrowings  - - - - - 

Net cash provided by/(used in) 

financing activities 
 (952) (951) (959) - 8 
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Net increase/(decrease) in cash and 

cash equivalents 
 543 (5,674) (809) (6,217) (4,865) 

Cash and cash equivalents at the 

beginning of the period 
 4,312 10,069 10,878 (5,757) (809) 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT 

THE END OF THE PERIOD 
4,855 4,395 10,069 (460) (5,674) 
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Significant variances between estimated and actual result for 2017 

 

1) Finance costs were below estimates due to below-budget interest rate. 

2) Accommodation expenses increased due to additional maintenance work required at 

City Beach, Geraldton, Narrogin and Northam Residential Colleges.  

3) Other expenses increased due to additional workers compensation insurance and 

doubtful debts. 

4) Sales of goods and services were below estimates due to fewer enrolments than 

budgeted. 

5) Other revenue increased due to additional revenue from Catholic Education WA. 

6) Services received free of charge increased due to additional services provided by the 

Department of Education. 

7) Royalties for Regions Fund decreased due to below-budget funds for District 

Allowances. 

8) Changes in asset revaluation were adverse to estimates due to unbudgeted devaluation 

of Esperance and Merredin Residential Colleges. 

9) Current cash and cash equivalents exceeded estimates due to extra funds from the sale of 

45 beds to Catholic Education WA. 

10) Restricted cash was below estimates due to less cash from Royalties for Regions projects 

still in progress. 

11) Holding account receivables were below estimates due to budget changes. 

12) Receivables were below estimates due to below-budget accounts receivable. 

13) Non-current receivables exceeded estimates due to monies receivable from Catholic 

Education WA. 

14) Payables were below estimates due to below-budget creditors. 

15) Employee current provisions were above estimates due to an increase in the number of 

staff eligible for long service leave. 

16) Employee non-current provisions were below estimates due to the payout for staff 

eligible for long service leave. 

17) Reserves were below estimates due to a devaluation of Esperance and Merredin 

Residential College buildings. 

18) Accumulated surplus was below estimates due to deficit for the period compared to a 

budgeted surplus. 

19) Cashflow from Royalties for Regions fund exceeded estimates due to an unbudgeted 

drawdown of funds for Broome Residential College. 

20) Accommodation payments increased due to additional maintenance work required at the 

City Beach, Geraldton, Narrogin and Northam Residential Colleges.  

21) Other payments increased due to above-budget workers compensation insurance. 

22) Receipts from sales of goods and services were below estimates due to fewer enrolments 

than budgeted. 

23) GST receipts exceeded estimates due to greater receipts from Royalties for Regions 

projects than budgeted. 

24) Other receipts exceeded estimates due to the sale of 45 beds to Catholic Education WA. 

25) Purchase of non-current assets exceeded estimates due to the timing of work on Broome 

Residential College. 

 



FFIINNAALL  RREEPPOORRTT  22001166--1177  

 

65 
 

 

 

Significant variances between actual results for 2017 and 2016 

 

A) Employee benefits expense increased due to additional staff at the expanded Broome 

Residential College and an increase in leave provision expense. 

B) Supplies and services expense increased due to additional maintenance work required at 

City Beach, Geraldton, Narrogin and Northam Residential Colleges. 

C) Finance costs decreased due to a reduction in interest rate. 

D) Other expenses increased due to additional workers compensation insurance and 

doubtful debts. 

E) Other revenue increased due to the hiring out of colleges during the school holidays. 

F) Services received free of charge increased due to additional services provided by the 

Department of Education. 

G) Royalties for Regions Fund increased due to extra funds for District Allowances. 

H) Changes in asset revaluation decreased due to a devaluation of Esperance and Merredin 

Residential Colleges. 

I) Restricted cash decreased due to the completion of the funds held for the Broome 

Residential College project. 

J) Current Receivables decreased due to a decrease in accounts receivable. 

K) Non-current Receivables decreased due to an annual payment from Catholic Education 

WA. 

L) Holding account receivables increased due to additional funds being set aside for the 

replacement of assets. 

M) Current employee provisions increased due to an increase in the number of staff eligible 

for long service leave. 

N) Non-current employee provisions decreased due to the payout for staff eligible for long 

service leave. 

O) Reserves decreased due to a devaluation of Esperance and Merredin Residential College 

buildings. 

P) Cashflow from Royalties for Regions decreased due to a decrease in drawdown for 

Broome Residential College. 

Q) Purchase of non-current assets decreased due to less expenditure on Royalties for 

Regions projects. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



FFIINNAALL  RREEPPOORRTT  22001166--1177  

 

66 
 

 
31.  Financial Instruments 

 

 (a)   Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies    

 Financial instruments held by the Authority are cash and cash equivalents, loans and 

receivables, payables and borrowings.  The Authority has limited exposure to financial 

risks.  The Authority's overall risk management program focuses on managing the 

risks identified below. 

          

 Credit Risk        

 Credit risk arises when there is the possibility of the Authority’s receivables defaulting 

on their contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the Authority.  The 

Authority measures credit risk on a fair value basis and monitors risk on a regular 

basis. The maximum exposure to credit risk at balance sheet date in relation to each 

class or recognised financial assets is the gross carrying amount of those assets 

inclusive of any provisions for impairment as shown in the table at note 31 (c) ‘Credit 

Risk and Interest Rate Risk Exposures’ and note 14 ‘Receivables’. 

 

Credit risk associated with the Authority’s financial assets is minimal because the main 

receivable is the amounts receivable for services (holding account).  For receivables 

other than government, the Authority trades only with recognised, creditworthy third 

parties.  The Authority has policies in place to ensure that sales of products and 

services are made to customers with an appropriate credit history.  In addition, 

receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis with the result that the 

Authority’s exposure to bad debts is minimal.  At the balance sheet date, there are no 

significant concentrations of credit risk. 

 

Allowance for impairment of financial assets is calculated based on objective evidence 

such as observable data indicating changes in client credit ratings.  For financial assets 

that are either past due or impaired, refer to note 31(c). 

          

 Liquidity Risk        

 The Authority is exposed to liquidity risk through its trading in the normal course of 

business.  Liquidity risk arises when the Authority is unable to meet its financial 

obligations as they fall due.  The Authority has appropriate procedures to manage cash 

flows, including draw downs of appropriations by monitoring forecast cash flows to 

ensure that sufficient funds are available to meet its commitments. 

          

 Market risk      

 The Authority's exposure to market risk for changes in interest rates relates primarily 

to the long-term debt obligations.  The Authority's borrowings are all obtained through 

the Western Australian Treasury Corporation (WATC) and are at fixed rates with 

varying maturities.  The risk is managed by WATC through portfolio diversification 

and variation in maturity dates.  Other than as detailed in the interest rate sensitivity 

analysis table at note 31 (d), the Authority is not exposed to interest rate risk because 

apart from minor amounts of restricted cash, all other cash and cash equivalents and 

restricted cash are non-interest bearing, and it has no borrowings other than the WATC 

borrowings. 
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 (b)   Categories of Financial Instruments    

 The carrying amounts of each of the following categories of 

financial liabilities at the end of the reporting period are: 

   

    2017  2016 

      $'000    $'000 

Financial Assets   

Cash and cash equivalents 4,147 4,354 

Restricted cash and cash equivalents 248 5,715 

Receivables (a) 1,891 2,833 

Amounts receivable for services 18,815 17,059 

 25,101 29,961 

   

Financial Liabilities   

Payables 254 269 

WATC Loan 13,934 14,884 

Other liabilities 150 140 

 14,338 15,293 

 

(a) The amount of receivables excludes GST recoverable from the Australian Taxation Office. 

 

 
 (c)   Credit Risk and Interest Rate Risk Exposures    

 The following table discloses the Authority’s maximum exposure to credit risk, and the 

ageing analysis of financial assets.  The Authority’s maximum exposure to credit risk 

at the balance sheet date is the carrying amount of financial assets as shown below.  

The table discloses the ageing of financial assets that are past due but not impaired and 

impaired financial assets.  The table is based on information provided to senior 

management of the Authority. 

 

The Authority does not hold any collateral as security or other credit enhancements 

relating to the financial assets it holds. 

 

The Authority does not hold any financial assets that had to have their terms 

renegotiated that would have otherwise resulted in them being past due or impaired.  
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Ageing analysis of financial assets 

 

 
   Past due but not impaired  

 

Carrying 
Amount 

$000 

Not past 
due and 

not 
impaired 

$000 

Up to 
1 month 

$000 

1-3 
months 

$000 

3 
months 

to  
1 year 

$000 

1-5 
years 

$000 

More 
than 

5 years 

$000 

Impaired 
financial 

assets 

$000 

2017         

Cash and cash 
equivalents 

4,147 4,147       

Restricted cash and 
cash equivalents 

248 248       

Receivables
(a)

 1,891  2 113 1,074 702   

Loans and advances         

Amounts receivable for 
services 

18,815 18,815       

 25,101 23,210 2 113 1,074 702   

2016         

Cash and cash 
equivalents 

4,354 4,354 - - - - - - 

Restricted cash and 
cash equivalents 

5,715 5,715  - - - - - 

Receivables
(a)

 2,833  2 78 1,233 1,520 - - 

Loans and advances -  - - - - - - 

Amounts receivable for 
services 

17,059 17,059 - - - - - - 

 29,961 27,128 2 78 1,233 1,520 - - 

 

(a) The amount of receivables excludes the GST recoverable from the Australian Taxation 

Office. 
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Liquidity Risk 

 

The following table details the contractual maturity analysis for financial liabilities.  The 

contractual maturity amounts are representative of the undiscounted amounts at the balance 

sheet date.  The table includes interest and principal cash flows.  An adjustment has been 

made where material. 

 

Interest rate exposure and maturity analysis of financial liabilities. 

 

 
   Interest rate exposure  Maturity dates 

 Weighted 
Average 
Effective 
Interest 

Rate 

% 

Carrying 
Amount 

$000 

Fixed 
interest 

rate 

$000 

Variable 
interest 

rate 

$000 

Non-
interest 
bearing 

$000 

Nominal 
Amount 

$000 

Up to 
1 month 

$000 

1-3 
months 

$000 

3 
 months 
to 1 year 

$000 

1-5 
years 

$000 

More 
than 

5 years 

$000 

 

2017            

Financial Assets           

Cash and cash 
equivalents 

1.9 4,147  3,660 487 4,147 4,147     

Restricted cash 
and cash 
equivalents 

1.9 248  48 200 248 248     

Receivables(a) 5.0 1,891 1,476  415 1,891 2 113 1,074 702  

Loans and 
advances 

           

Amounts 
receivable for 
services 

 18,815   18,815 18,815 125 125 244 1,976 16,345 

  25,101 1,476 3,708 19,917 25,101 4,522 238 1,318 2,678 16,345 

            

Financial Liabilities           

Payables  254   254 254 254     

Bank overdraft            

WATC/Bank 
borrowings 

4.0 13,934 13,934   13,934 238  714 3,848 9.134 

Other liabilities  150   150 150 150     

Amounts due to 
the Treasurer 

           

  14,338 13,934  404 14,338 642  714 3,848 9,134 

 

 

(a) The amount of receivables excludes the GST recoverable from the Australian Taxation 

Office (statutory receivable). 
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   Interest rate exposure  Maturity dates 

 Weighted 
Average 
Effective 
Interest 

Rate 

% 

Carrying 
Amount 

$000 

Fixed 
interest 

rate 

$000 

Variable 
interest 

rate 

$000 

Non-
interest 
bearing 

$000 

Nominal 
Amount 

$000 

Up to 
1 month 

$000 

1-3 
months 

$000 

3 
 months 
to 1 year 

$000 

1-5 
years 

$000 

More 
than 

5 years 

$000 

 

2016            

Financial Assets           

Cash and cash 
equivalents 

2.5 4,354 - 3,067 1,287 4,354 4,354 - - - - 

Restricted cash 
and cash 
equivalents 

2.5 5,715 - 48 5,667 5,715 5,715 - - - - 

Receivables(a) 5.0 2,833 2,268 - 565 2,833 2 78 1,233 1,520 - 

Loans and 
advances 

- - - - - - - - - - - 

Amounts 
receivable for 
services 

- 17,059 - - 17,059 17,059 125 125 244 1,976 14,589 

  29,961 2,268 3,115 24,578 29,961 10,196 203 1,477 3,496 14,589 

            

Financial Liabilities           

Payables - 269 - - 269 269 269 - - - - 

Bank overdraft - - - - - - - - - - - 

WATC/Bank 
borrowings 

4.5 14,884 14,884 - - 14,884 239 - 712 3,831 10,102 

Other liabilities  140  - 140 140 140 - - - - 

Amounts due to 
the Treasurer 

- - - - - - - - - - - 

 - 15,293 14,884 - 409 15,293 648 - 712 3,831 10,102 

 

 

(a) The amount of receivables excludes the GST recoverable from the Australian Taxation 

Office (statutory receivable). 
 

The amounts disclosed are the contractual undiscounted cash flows of each class of financial 

liabilities. 
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 (d)   Interest Rate Sensitivity Analysis    

 The following table represents a summary of the interest rate sensitivity of the 

Authority’s financial assets and liabilities at the balance sheet date on the surplus for the 

period and equity for a 1 per cent change in interest rates.  It is assumed that the change 

in interest rates is held constant throughout the reporting period. 

 
2017 

Financial Assets Carrying 

Amount 

$(000’s) 

-100 basis points +100 basis points 

Surplus 

$(000’s) 

Equity 

$(000’s) 

Surplus 

$(000’s) 

Equity 

$(000’s) 

Cash and cash 

equivalents 

3,708 (37) (37) 37 37 

 
2016 

Financial Assets Carrying 

Amount 

$(000’s) 

-100 basis points +100 basis points 

Surplus 

$(000’s) 

Equity 

$(000’s) 

Surplus 

$(000’s) 

Equity 

$(000’s) 

Cash and cash 

equivalents 

3,115 (31) (31) 31 31 

 

Fair Values 

All financial assets and liabilities recognised in the Statement of Financial Position, 

whether they are carried at cost or fair value, are recognised at amounts that represent a 

reasonable approximation of fair value unless otherwise stated in the applicable notes. 

 

32. Compensation of Key Management Personnel 

  

 Compensation of Members of the Country High School Hostels Authority 

         

 The Authority has determined that key management personnel include responsible 

Ministers, members and senior officers of the Authority. However, the Authority is not 

obligated to compensate the Ministers and therefore disclosures in relation to Ministers’ 

compensation may be found in the Annual Report on State Finances. 

 

Total compensation for key management personnel, comprising members and senior 

officers, of the Authority for the reporting period are presented within the following 

bands:  

 

 Compensation Band ($)   2017 2016 

 0 - 10,000    2 2 

      

  $000 $000 

 Short-term employee 4 9 

 Post-employment benefits - - 

 Other long-term benefits - - 

 Post-employment benefits - - 

 Total compensation of key management personnel 4 9 
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 The superannuation included here represents the superannuation expense incurred by 

the Authority in respect of members of the Accountable Authority. 

          

 No members of the Authority are members of the Pension Scheme.   

 

 Compensation of Senior Officers      

          

 The number of Senior Officers, other than those reported as members of the Country 

High School Hostels Authority, whose total fees, salaries, superannuation, non-

monetary benefits and other benefits for the financial year, fall within the following 

bands are:  

          

      2017 2016 

 Compensation Band ($)     

 150,000 – 160,000 

140,000 - 150,000 

  1 

- 

- 

1 

     

     $000 $000 

 Short-term employee 137 130 

 Post-employment benefits - - 

 Other long-term benefits 15 15 

 Termination benefits 

 

- - 

 Total compensation of key management personnel 152 145 

          

  

33.  Compensation of Auditor 

 

 Compensation paid or payable to the Auditor General in respect to the audit for the 

current financial year is as follows: 

      2017 2016 

 Auditing the accounts, financial statements and 

performance indicators. 

47 45 

          

 The expense is included at note 7 (Supplies & Services) under ‘Other administration 

expenses’. 
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34. Supplementary Financial Information 

 

    

 Write-offs        

 Boarding debts due to the State to the value of $52,084 were written off during the 

2016-17 financial year.  

  

    2017 2016 

    $000 $000 

 Bad debt written off by the Authority during the period 52 59 

  52 59 

    

 Losses through theft, defaults and other causes   

 Losses of public moneys and public and other property 

through theft or default  

  

  - - 

 Amounts recovered - - 

  - - 

    

 Gifts of public property   

 Gifts of public property provided by the Authority - - 

    

    

35. Unauthorised Use of Credit Cards 

 

  

 Officers of the Authority hold corporate credit cards where their functions warrant 

usage of this facility. There was no private use of these corporate credit cards during 

2016-17. 

 
36. Related Party Transactions 

 

  

 The Authority is a wholly owned and controlled entity of the State of Western 

Australia. In conducting its activities, the Authority is required to pay various taxes 

and levies based on the standard terms and conditions that apply to all tax and levy 

payers to the State and entities related to the State. 

 

Related parties of the Authority include: 

 all Ministers and their close family members, and their controlled or jointly 

controlled entities; 

 all senior officers and their close family members, and their controlled or 

jointly controlled entities; 

 other departments and public sector entities, including related bodies 

included in the whole-of-government consolidated financial statements; and 

 associates and joint ventures that are included in the whole-of -government 

consolidated financial statements. 
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Significant transactions with government related entities 

 

Significant transactions include: 

 service appropriations (Note 13); 

 capital appropriations (Note 13); 

 services received free of charge from the Department of Education (Note 13); 

 Royalties for Regions Fund (Note 13); 

 lease rentals payments to the Department of Finance (Note 7); and 

 

 

Material transactions with other related parties 

 

 superannuation payments to GESB (Note 7). 

  

   
The Authority had no material related party transactions with Ministers/senior officers or 

their close family members or their controlled (or jointly controlled) entities for disclosure. 
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Other Financial Disclosures 
 

Pricing Policies of Services Provided 
 

In Western Australia, education is highly valued and compulsory until the end of the year in 

which a student turns 17.  As a geographically large state with a broadly dispersed 

population, the State Government makes provision for students whose family home is far 

from the nearest school offering their year of study.  These provisions include the 

establishment of residential colleges through the Country High School Hostels Authority and 

a State Boarding Away from Home Allowance so that geographic location is no impediment to 

gaining access to appropriate schooling and educational opportunities.   

 

Each year, the Authority reviews increases in the cost of living, the cost of delivering its 

boarding service and the net cost of boarding at its residential colleges.  It recommends a fee 

each year for the Minister’s consideration.  The Minister presents a recommended fee to the 

Under Treasurer. 

 

In 2017, the Authority's boarding and amenities fee increased to $13,660, which included a 

$300 amenities fee component and a GST component (on meals) of $182.  The fee, which was 

applicable at all residential colleges, covered a student's room, meals, care and supervision 

for seven days a week during the school year. 

 

The cost of boarding is substantially reduced for families eligible for financial assistance 

through a number of State and Commonwealth Government schemes.  Assistance schemes 

include the Assistance for Isolated Children boarding allowances, the State Boarding Away From 

Home Allowance, ABSTUDY and Youth Allowance.   

 

The net boarding cost in 2017 for an isolated student receiving the non-means tested 

Assistance for Isolated Children allowance of $8,095 and the State Boarding Away from Home 

Allowance of $2,105 is $3,460.  This equated to $86 per week over the 40-week school year.  

 

The cost of boarding is less for families on low incomes who qualify for the Assistance for 

Isolated Children Additional Allowance.  From age 16, students may be eligible for additional 

assistance under the income-tested Youth Allowance or ABSTUDY schemes.  

 

Boarding Cost after Allowances (2007 – 2017) 
 

 
 

The net cost of boarding has increased over the last few years due to increased costs, but still 

provides good value for money at $86 per week. 
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Advertising 

 

In accordance with Section 175ZE of the Electoral Act 1907, the following information is 

presented.  The total expenditure on advertising for 2016-17 was $79,510.  The Authority’s 

nine residential colleges spent $59,277 on the production and distribution of information 

booklets, print, radio and television promotions and on regional field day and local 

agricultural show displays.  An additional $20,233 was spent on job vacancy advertising.  

 

 

Capital Works 
 

Expenditure on capital works in 2016-17 amounted to $6,155,155 and included costs 

associated with additions to dormitories at Broome Residential College and improvements at 

Albany, Esperance, Geraldton, Merredin, Moora, Narrogin and Northam Residential 

Colleges.  

 

The breakdown was as follows: 

 

 $0.063m Albany Residential College 

 $5.668m Broome Residential College 

 $0.045m Esperance Residential College 

 $0.039m Geraldton Residential College 

 $0.122m Merredin Residential College 

 $0.067m Moora Residential College 

 $0.118m Narrogin Residential College 

 $0.033m Northam Residential College 

 

 

Leave Liability 
 

Leave liability is effectively managed by the Authority and has been at an acceptable level for 

2016-17.   

 

Under the terms of employment, all residential college staff, besides grounds staff, utilise 

their annual leave over the summer vacation period in the absence of residential students.   

 

In addition, all residential colleges make financial provision each year to cover the cost of 

staff entitled to long service leave.  Compliance with long service leave policy and financial 

provision requirements are monitored and managed as necessary.  

 

 

Risk Management 
 

The Authority and all residential colleges reviewed their operational activities and reassessed 

their risk list and risk classifications.  Where necessary, the Authority and residential colleges 

updated their risk management action plans.   
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Employment and Industrial Relations 
 

 

Personnel Screening 

 
The Authority initiated criminal conviction screening for all new staff in 1991.  The Authority 

uses the Department of Education’s Screening Unit, who conducts National Police History 

Checks, through the CrimTrac Agency for the Education and Training sectors in Western 

Australia.  In 2006, all Authority personnel were re-screened using this process, as it applies 

to people working either as paid employees or volunteers in the education sector operations 

under that agency’s jurisdiction.  Since then, all new personnel have been required to 

undertake this screening and gain a clearance before commencing employment in any 

capacity or position.   

 

Additionally, all existing Authority personnel hold a current Working with Children clearance 

and all new personnel are required to obtain this clearance as a condition of their 

employment.  The cost of subsequent employee reassessments every three years, in 

accordance with Working with Children (Criminal Record Checking) Act 2004 requirements, is 

met by the Authority.  

 

In 2013, it became policy for all concerns or allegations about sexual abuse raised by 

residential college students and staff to be reported to the former Department of Child 

Protection and Family Support (CPFS) and/or WA Police.  As of 1 January 2016, all boarding 

supervisors are now mandatory reporters for child sexual abuse and must make a report to 

the CPFS via the Mandatory Reporting Service as prescribed by Division 9A of the Children 

and Community Services Act 2004. 

 

 

Competency 
 

For many years, boarding services throughout Australia have operated without access to a 

pool of people with a relevant accredited qualification.  As a consequence, the Authority has 

trained staff in-house and required them to gain a range of relevant credentials while ‘on-the-

job’.   

 

The Authority has supported the development of an Australian Qualifications Training 

Framework Certificate by Boarding Australia for people working in boarding facilities across 

Australia.  This Certificate IV in Community Services (Residential Student Care) is met with 

broad industry support and the Australian Commonwealth Government has provided 

financial assistance for boarding staff undertaking this training.   

 

All new boarding supervisors are required to gain this qualification within 12 months of 

being appointed to the position and are considered ‘permanent on probation’ until they have 

successfully completed the course. In addition, the Authority has initiated a program that 

reimburses the residual training cost for boarding staff upon completion. 
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Employment Agreements 
 

On 23 December 2015, the Government Services (Miscellaneous) General Agreement 2016 was 

registered by the Western Australian Industrial Relations Commission.  The agreement 

replaced the Government Services (Miscellaneous) General Agreement 10 of 2013 and has since 1 

January 2016 for a period of three years.  The Country High School Hostels Authority Residential 

College Supervisory Agreement 2014 and the Public Service and Government Officers General 

Agreement 2014 came into effect in July 2014.  

 

 

Employee Perceptions Survey 
 

Each year, the Public Sector Commission undertakes an ‘Employee Perceptions Survey’, with 

a number of government agencies, to establish employees’ views of the extent to which 

behaviour in their agency is consistent with human resource standards, the Commissioner’s 

Instruction No. 7 - Code of Ethics, and equity and diversity principles.  In 2016-17, the Authority 

was not invited to participate. 

 

 

Equal Employment Opportunity 
 

Integrating the requirements of diversity and equal employment opportunity into a wider 

workforce and diversity plan ensures that the Authority manages the diverse backgrounds, 

skills, talents and perspectives of its workforce in strong economic climates or periods of 

downturn.  The Authority has ensured that its equal employment opportunity planning and 

management, as incorporated within its Interim Workforce Development and Diversity Plan  

2015-2016, is in accordance with s145 of the Equal Opportunity Act 1984.   

 

 

Workforce Development and Diversity Plan 
 

The Workforce Development and Diversity Plan is a business imperative that links a range of 

cross-government documents, strategies and legislation.  The Authority is aware of the 

importance of the legislative and strategic drivers that underpin workforce planning and has 

sought to employ effective strategies to: 

 attract a skilled workforce; 

 retain valued employees; 

 build capacity in the public sector; 

 provide strategic leadership; 

 meet regional needs; and 

 ensure an efficient and flexible public sector. 

 

The Plan seeks to provide sound management of the Authority’s diverse workforce and its 

operations, which need to respond to growth in service demand in some regional locations 

and diminishing demand in others.  The focus is on having the right number of people, with 

the right skill sets, and with gender, youth and indigenous composition appropriate to the 

needs of the Authority’s clientele, while at the same time supporting Authority employees 

during a period of transition.  
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Authority Staff by Employment Category (as at 30 June 2017)   
 

 2016 2016 2017 2017 

 FTE No. FTE No. 

Central Office 5.4  4.0  

Full-time employees  5  4 

Part-time employees  1  0 

Casuals  0  0 

     

Supervisory Staff 60.3  65.7  

Full-time employees  54  58 

Part-time employees  2  10 

Casuals  9  6 

     

Administrative Staff 8.1  9.5  

Full-time employees  1  5 

Part-time employees  11  9 

Casuals  0  4 

     

Ancillary Staff 36.8  40.4  

Full-time employees  9  13 

Part-time employees  47  48 

Casuals  4  6 

     

Total 110.6 143 119.6 163 

 

     

Other Information 2015 2016  2017 

     

Full-time employees 74 69  81 

Part-time employees 71 61  67 

Casuals 5 13  16 

Total 150 143  164 

     

Female employees 100 100  111 

Male employees 50 43  53 

Total 150 143  164 

     

Employees from culturally & 

linguistically diverse backgrounds 

7 7  9 

Aboriginal & Torres Strait Islander 

employees – Trainees under registered 

traineeships  

2 1  2 

Employees with Disabilities 1 0  0 

Employees under 25 yrs of age 4 1  4 

Employees over 45 yrs of age 123 89  96 
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Other Legal and Public Sector Management Requirements 
 

 

Public Sector Standards and Ethical Codes 
 

Authority personnel are committed to high standards of professional conduct and integrity 

with a particular focus on the protection, safety and wellbeing of the students in residence.  

All residential colleges operate with their own Board of Management, which includes parents 

and independent volunteer members of the community. They provide local oversight of 

residential college operations in addition to that provided by central office staff. 

 

The Authority has policies and procedures in place to address and minimise risks associated 

with employee misconduct and corruption.  Its policies and practice comply with the WA 

Public Sector Code of Ethics, the Authority’s Code of Conduct and the Public Sector Human 

Resources Standards.   

 

Induction, training and information-sharing processes ensure that staff are well-informed 

about all policies and guidelines relating to public sector and agency requirements, standards 

and service delivery.  All staff are provided with information about the Public Sector 

Management (Breaches of Public Sector Standards) Regulations 2005 provisions and how an 

employee can seek redress if they believe a Public Sector Human Resources Standard has 

been breached.  All job applicants are given information about the Public Sector Human 

Resources Employment Standard relating to recruitment and filling vacancies.   

 

In 2016-17, the Public Sector Entity Survey and the Integrity and Conduct Survey was 

completed and returned to the Public Sector Commission on time.   

 

 

Discipline and Performance Management 

 

During the reporting period, one employee was terminated due to substandard performance.  

Three misconduct matters were referred to the Standards and Integrity Directorate of the 

Department of Education for investigation.    
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Public Interest Disclosures 

 

There were no public interest disclosures in the reporting period.  

 

 

Customer Service 

 

As an agency responsible for the wellbeing of students living away from home, residential 

college and central office staff are very aware of their obligation to have regular 

communication with the students and their parents.  The supervisory staff make regular 

contact with them, via telephone and when they visit or pick up their children on weekends 

or during school holidays, to discuss their wellbeing and progress.   

 

To ensure that parents can provide formal input into residential college operations, the 

Authority implements a biennial parent survey, which invites parents to rate and provide 

commentary or suggestions on various aspects of college operations.  All suggestions are 

presented to the respective College Boards of Management and to residential college 

managers to assist them in improving and delivering a boarding service that is highly valued 

by parents.  

 

Residential college staff are respectful in their dealings with students and engage them in 

providing input into residential college operations that provide a safe, fair and supportive 

social environment.  They invite, acknowledge and respond responsibly to student queries 

and concerns. 

 

 

Complaints 

 

The Authority welcomes complaints and has a clearly articulated complaints handling 

process.   
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Disability Access and Inclusion Plan Outcomes 

 

The Authority is committed to ensuring that its buildings, facilities, information and services are 

open, available and accessible to everyone, including people with disabilities, providing them with 

the same opportunities, rights and responsibilities as other members of the community. 

 

In 2016-17, we demonstrated our commitment to meet the diverse needs of students, parents, staff, 

contractors and visitors by continuing our work on implementing a range of initiatives: 

1. People with disabilities have the same opportunities as other people to access the services of, 

and any events organised by, a public authority. 

 Access requirements are considered as part of usual process when planning an event.  

Attendees are asked to inform us of any specific access and equity requirements when 

responding to invitations. Requirements are accommodated as appropriate. 

2. People with disabilities have the same opportunities as other people to access the buildings and 

other facilities of a public authority. 

 Our capital and minor works programs continue to provide buildings that meet the needs 

of people with disabilities.  

3. People with disabilities receive information from a public authority in a format that will enable 

them to access the information as readily as other people are able to access it. 

 Material produced by us is available on request in appropriate alternative formats and 

videos use captioning.  

4. People with disabilities receive the same level and quality of service from the staff of a public 

authority as other people receive from the staff of that public authority. 

 Ensuring equality and inclusion is a consideration when reviewing policy.  

5. People with disabilities have the same opportunities as other people to make complaints to a 

public authority. 

 e support our staff with the knowledge and resources required to receive and respond to 

complaints from people with disabilities.  

6. People with disabilities have the same opportunities as other people to participate in any public 

consultation by a public authority. 

 We ensure that any public consultation organised by us complies with the State 

Government Access Guidelines for Information, Services and Facilities.  

7. People with disabilities have the same opportunities as other people to obtain and maintain 

employment with a public authority. 

 Exempt 

 

The Authority’s Disability Access and Inclusion Plan is reviewed in consultation with all stakeholders 

and the community.  The Disability Access and Inclusion Plan (2012-2016) was finalised and published 

in June 2012 and is also available on the Authority’s website.  Progress on the implementation of the 

Disability Access and Inclusion Plan was reported to the Disability Services Commission during the 

reporting period.   

 
As the Disability Access and Inclusion Plan will cease at the end of 2016, the Authority will take a 

different approach to the forthcoming ‘end of plan’ review of our Disability Access and Inclusion Plan 

by working together with the Department of Education.  This action will still allow the Authority to 

mark its annual progress and modify strategies to ensure currency or to reflect emerging issues if 

required, and account for individual reporting requirements even though informally operating 

within the Department of Education. 
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Record Keeping 
 

The Authority is collocated with the Department of Education and utilises the same file plan, 

electronic records management and retention and disposal system as the Department of 

Education.   

 

In 2016-17, training and support has been ongoing for residential college managers and 

administration and finance officers. 

 

Record keeping training is provided to all new staff as part of their induction process.  Newly 

appointed Residential College Board of Management members receive information about 

recordkeeping in their Induction Manual.  

 

 

Freedom of Information 
 

The Authority maintains an Information Statement in accordance with State Government 

requirements.  It supports the principle that Freedom of Information applications should be the 

process of last resort reserved to deal with the most sensitive information.  The Authority aims 

as far as possible to provide access to documents or information outside the Freedom of 

Information process.   

 

Requests made under the provisions of the Freedom of Information Act 1992 can be addressed 

directly to the Freedom of Information Officer at the Authority’s address.  Under the Freedom of 

Information Regulations 1993, the Department of Education manages Freedom of Information 

requests relating to the Authority’s operations.  Some costs are involved where information is 

not available free of charge. 

 

For the year ended 30 June 2017, there was no request for information under the Freedom of 

Information Act 1992.   

 

 

Publications 

 

The Authority and all of its nine residential colleges have each established and maintained a 

website.  The Authority’s website, www.education.wa.edu.au/boarding, provides public access to 

many of the Authority's publications, policies and manuals, including access to enrolment 

forms, fee and allowance information and links to residential colleges and related 

organisations. 

 

The Authority has a number of publications that are available for viewing on application to the 

Authority.  These include: 

 an information booklet for parents;  

 a set of standards for the care and supervision of students boarding at the Authority’s 

residential colleges;  

 guidelines for the staff who supervise and care for the students in residence, and policy 

and procedure manuals for the colleges covering college administration;  
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 guidelines for Authority board members; 

 the college board of management constitution and induction manual for residential college 

board members;  

 human resources and finance management policies and requirements, records management, 

risk management, information technology policies, and equal employment and diversity 

disability services plans; and 

 the Authority’s Code of Conduct and Annual Reports.   

 

Most of the above documents are available in PDF format on the Authority’s website.  Reviews 

and reports on the Authority’s operations and its residential colleges over the past ten years are 

also available for perusal. Central office and residential college newsletters provide business 

activity updates for staff and parents respectively.  

 

 

Occupational Safety, Health and Injury Management 
 

The Authority is committed to the prevention of accidents and injury and to the identification and 

safe management of hazards in the workplace.  As the provider of a boarding service for school 

students, the Authority operates in full appreciation of its duty of care to the students in residence 

and its staff.  All residential college staff are aware of the need to identify hazards and ensure that: 

 

 facilities are safe and safety concerns are documented, reported and promptly rectified;  

 medical and health records are up to date; 

 first aid equipment and materials are on hand and maintained; 

 health management processes meet senior first aid standards; 

 pandemic action plans and processes meet Department of Health standards; 

 catering services meet the relevant food storage, handling and preparation standards;  

 all college plant and equipment is regularly serviced, maintained and used efficiently; 

 they respond in accordance with bushfire and emergency management processes; 

 fire and electrical safety equipment and processes are functioning properly and safely;  

 chemicals are stored and handled in accordance with the relevant regulations;  

 swimming pools are maintained and managed in accordance with State Government 

regulations and local government oversight; and 

 residential college buses meet school bus safety standards, are properly maintained, checked 

for safety each year in accordance with their licensing arrangements and used in accordance 

with agency policy.   

 

Bushfire hazard and response management was an action priority again in 2016-17.  

 

All residential colleges maintain comprehensive health information about their students and are 

trained in health and infectious disease management.  

 

All residential colleges have processes in place to ensure that staff are well trained in identifying 

hazards and managing risks in the interests of safety and good health.  As a condition of their 

employment and in addition to the Certificate IV in Community Services (Residential Student 

Care), all supervisory staff are required to gain and maintain a senior first aid certificate, an 

aquatic rescue or pool management certificate, a duty of care certificate and an ‘F’ endorsed 

driver’s licence.   
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Appropriate alert and reporting processes are a key part of college practice, and regular staff 

meetings are held where any concerns about safety or health are addressed as a matter of 

priority.  The Manager Residential Colleges receives prompt advice in respect to critical or 

significant matters.  In addition, Residential College Managers regularly review management, 

safety and health concerns with the Manager Residential Colleges at triennial meetings.  

 

None of the residential colleges are built on, or near, a contaminated site.  All worksites have 

been assessed for asbestos and formal asbestos management processes are in place at all 

worksites to ensure that all staff and contractors are aware of the presence of asbestos and 

how they are to manage the risk.   

 

The Authority has continued to utilise the Occupational Safety and Health in the Western 

Australian Public Sector Code of Practice to review its risk profile, risk management plan and 

policies and practices that have been formulated to prevent accidents and injury in the 

workplace.  

 

 

Injury Management 

 

The Authority has an Injury Management System in place.  Return to work programs are 

developed in accordance with the Workers’ Compensation and Injury Management Act 1981. 

 

RiskCover, the agency’s insurer, accepted liability for three lost-time injury claims during the 

reporting period.  No claims were classified as severe.  The three staff members commenced 

working within 13 weeks.   

 

 2014-15 

Actual 

2015-16 

Actual 

2016-17 

Actual 

2017-18  

Target 

Number of fatalities 0 0 0 0 

Lost-time injury/disease incidence rate1 2.75% 3.60% 3.35% 3.02% 

Lost-time injury severity rate2    0% 25% 0% 0% 

Percentage of injured workers returned to 

work within 13 weeks3 

100% 100% 100% 100% 

Percentage of injured workers returned to 

work within 26 weeks3 

100% 100% 100% 100% 

Percentage of managers trained in 

occupational safety, health and injury 

management responsibilities. 

100% 100% 100% 100% 

 

1. The lost-time injury/disease incidence rate is the number of lost-time injuries/diseases 

where one day/shift is lost, in the financial year per 100 employees. 

2. The lost-time injury severity rate is the number of severe injuries divided by the 

number of lost-time injuries multiplied by 100.  It is a measure of accident prevention 

and the effectiveness of injury management.  

3. This is a measure of the effectiveness and success of injury management processes in 

facilitating a return to work for injured workers.  
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Country High School 151 Royal Street 

Hostels Authority East Perth WA 6004 

Freecall 1800 645 212 T (08) 9264 5434 
F (08) 9264 5433 
E: chsha@education.wa.edu.wa 
W: det.wa.edu.au/boarding 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 


